
 

 
LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 PROPOSED AGENDA 
WORK SESSION, MONDAY, FEBRUARY 10, 2025, 8:30 A.M. 

REGULAR SESSION, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 2025, 5:30 P.M. 
327 N. Ashley Street - 2nd Floor 

 
 

 

1. Call To Order 
    
2. Invocation 
    
3. Pledge Of Allegiance To The Flag 
    
4. Minutes For Approval 
    
  a. Work Session - January 27, 2025 & Regular Session - January 28, 2025  
  Recommended Action:  Approve 
  Documents:  
      
5. Public Hearing 
    
  a. REZ-2025-01 Hurtado Property, Bethany Dr., ~6.4ac, R-A to R-1, County Water & Septic  
  Recommended Action:  Board's Pleasure 
  Documents:  
      
  b. REZ-2025-02 Hamilton Green Ph. 2, 4618 Bemiss Rd, 1.12ac, C-G to P-D, County Utilities  
  Recommended Action:  Approve 
  Documents:  
      
  c. REZ-2025-03 Thomas Linville, 4888 Break Thru Rd., ~16.3ac, R-1 to E-A, Well & Septic  
  Recommended Action:  Approve 
  Documents:  
      
  d. REZ-2025-04 River Run Farm, 6490 River Run, ~27ac., C-C to R-21, County Water & Septic  
  Recommended Action:  Board's Pleasure 
  Documents:  
      
6. For Consideration 
    

  a. Resolution Authorizing the Lowndes County Tax Commissioner to Receive Checks and Money 
Orders in Payment of Taxes and Licenses  

  Recommended Action:  Approve 
  Documents:  
      
  b. A Resolution Electing Not to Require Mobile Home Decals  
  Recommended Action:  Approve 
  Documents:  
      

  c. Beer and Wine License - Manishkumar Patel of Kasumbal 2025 LLC, DBA Busy Food Mart, 6901 
Bellville Road, Lake Park, GA  

  Recommended Action:  Approve 



 

 

  Documents:  
      
  d. New Endpoint Detection and Response (EDR) Software  
  Recommended Action:  Approve 
  Documents:  
      
  e. Whitewater Road Lift Station Pump  
  Recommended Action:  Approve 
  Documents:  
      
  f. Acceptance of Hazard Mitigation Grant for Generators  
  Recommended Action:  Approve 
  Documents:  
      
  g. The Crescent Place of Historic Interest Tax Exemption  
  Recommended Action:  Option 1 
  Documents:  
      
  h. Rules and Regulations for Claims for Refunds of Taxes  
  Recommended Action:  Option 1 
  Documents:  
      
7. Reports - County Manager 
    
8. Citizens Wishing To Be Heard - Please State Your Name and Address 
    
9. Adjournment 
    

 



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: REZ-2025-01 Hurtado Property, Bethany Dr., ~6.4ac, R-A to 
R-1, County Water & Septic  

  
 

  

DATE OF MEETING: February 11, 2025   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: N/A 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: REZ-2025-01 Hurtado Property, Bethany Dr., ~6.4ac, R-
A to R-1, County Water & Septic 

 
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: This request represents a change in zoning on a portion of the subject property 
from R-A (Residential Agricultural) zoning to R-1 (Low Density Residential) zoning.  The general motivation in 
this case is for the applicant to subdivide the property into conforming lots for individual residences. The 
subject property possesses road frontage on Bethany Drive and Val Del Road, both local and collector County 
maintained roads respectively, is within the Rural Service Area and Rural Residential Character Area, which 
recommend R-1 zoning.   
  
The TRC analyzed the request, the standards governing the exercise of zoning power set forth in 10.01.05 of 
the ULDC, and factors most relevant to this application, including the neighboring land uses and lot sizes, the 
availability of County water, the viability of septic systems, and the unique shape of the property, and 
therefore recommends approval of the request for R-1 zoning as depicted on the submitted survey. 
  

Zoning  

District 

Minimum Lot Area 

(sq. ft.) 

Minimum Lot width 

(feet) 
  With 

Individual Well 
Water 

With Central 
Water System  

With 
Individual 

Well Water 

With Central 
Water System 

  

Maximum 
Impervious surface 

Ratio (Percent) 

R-A 108,900 108,900 150 100 20 
R-1 43,560 43,560 120 100 30 

  
Zoning 
district 

Minimum Setbacks from Centerline of 
Street 

Minimum Setbacks 
from Property lines 

  Front 

(feet) 

Side 

(ft.) 

Rear 

(ft.) 
  Arterial Collector Residential     

  

Maximum Building Heigh
t (ft.) 

R-A 80 70 60 20 40 35 



 

 

R-1 80 70 60 20 40 35 
 
At the GLPC meeting, the applicant spoke in favor of the request, and a few citizens spoke in opposition, 
expressing concerns over stormwater and drainage concerns affecting their property, added traffic and 
speeding along Bethany and Val Del Road, and the current sale of 2.5+ acre lots on the western portion of 
Bethany Road near Bethany Drive. The Planning Commission questioned the timeline of the Val Del Road 
expansion, the availability of County Water and the minimum lot sizes for septic systems. The GLPC ultimately 
motioned to recommend denial, with a brief discussion about the TRC's recommendation, before voting on 
the motion, which passed (8-1).   
  
  
OPTIONS: 1) Approve 

2) Approve with Conditions 
3) Table 
4) Deny 

  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Board's Pleasure 
  
DEPARTMENT: Planning/Zoning                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: JD Dillard 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 









V
A

L
 D

E
L

 R
D

BETHANY DR

REZ-2025-01
Hurtado Property
Rezoning Request

Future Development Map

µ

Roads

Functional Classification

1, INTERSTATE

3, OTHER PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

4, MINOR ARTERIAL

5, MAJOR COLLECTOR

6, MINOR COLLECTOR

7, LOCAL

Railroads

0 150 30075
Feet

Legend

Character Areas
Agriculture / Forestry

Community Activity
Center

Downtown

Established Residential

Industrial Activity
Center

Industrial Area

Institutional Activity
Center

Linear Greenspace/Trails

Mill Town

Moody Activity Zone

Neighborhood Activity
Center

Park/Recreation/
Conservation

Public / Institutional

Regional Activity Center

Remerton Neighborhood
Village

Rural Activity Center

Rural Residential

Suburban Area

Transitional
Neighborhood

Transportation/
Communication/Utilities



V
A

L
D

E
L

R
D

BETHANY DR

REZ-2025-01

Hurtado Property
Rezoning Request

WRPDO Site Map

Legend

Roads

Railroads

Park

City Limits

Crashzone

Crashzone West

Urban Service Area

Open Water

Valdosta Airport

Wetlands

100 Yr Flood

Hydrology

Drastic

Recharge Areas

Parcels

. 0 300 600
Feet





LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: REZ-2025-02 Hamilton Green Ph. 2, 4618 Bemiss Rd, 
1.12ac, C-G to P-D, County Utilities  

  
 

  

DATE OF MEETING: February 11, 2025   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: N/A 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: REZ-2025-02 Hamilton Green Ph. 2, 4618 Bemiss Rd, 
1.12ac, C-G to P-D, County Utilities 

 
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: This request represents a change in zoning on the subject properties from C-G 
(General Commercial) and P-D (Planned Development) zoning to P-D zoning.  The general motivation in this 
case is for the applicant to develop an additional 12-units of townhomes and amenities for the Hamilton 
Green neighborhood. The subject property possesses road frontage on Bemiss Road, a State Highway, is 
within the Urban Service Area, Bemiss Corridor Overlay, and Neighborhood Activity Center Character Area, 
which recommend P-D zoning.   
  
The TRC analyzed the request, the standards governing the exercise of zoning power set forth in 10.01.05 of 
the ULDC, and factors most relevant to this application, including the neighboring land use, lot sizes, and 
zoning pattern, the availability of County utilities, the existing approved site plan and therefore recommends 
approval of the request for P-D zoning as depicted on the proposed site plan. 
 
At the GLPC meeting, the applicant's engineer spoke in favor of the request, while no one spoke in opposition. 
Therefore, the GLPC voted unanimously (9-0) to recommend approval. 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1) Approve 

2) Approve with Conditions 
3) Table 
4) Deny 

  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 
  
DEPARTMENT: Planning/Zoning                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: JD Dillard 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 





9

123456781718192021222324

2930313233343536 910111213141516

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

64

63

65

66

67

68

69

70

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

72

71

53

54

25262728

N

IMPERIOUS QUANTITIES (TOWNHOMES ONLY - 7.32 ac):
· ASPHALT/CONCRETE PAVEMENT - 49,360 SF
· 24" CURB AND GUTTER "MIAMI" TYPE - 3,505 LF = 7,010 SF
· 30" CURB AND GUTTER GDOT - 408 LF = 1,020 SF
· 4" CONCRETE SIDEWALK - 7,555 SF
· BUILDINGS - 72,650 SF

IMPERVIOUS AREA: 137,595 SF = 3.16 AC

ST ST ST
ST ST

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>

15
'

PP

PROPOSED RETENTION
AREA

PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT

ZONED CG: 1.12 AC

AKEL & GROSS DEVELOPMENT CO.
LLC

PARCEL: 0145D 007A

5

4

3

2

1 1

1

1

6
7

9

10

7 7

12
12

11

11

11

13

7

14

14

14

14

15

15

16
16

16

16

17

18
19 20

20

21

23

1

26

2425

30' 22

1

8

27

28

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/WR/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W

OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP
OHP

OHP

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

BEMISS ROAD S.R. 125 - (VARIABLE R/W) - 45 MPH PSL

STRATFORD CIRCLE

9291908988878685

84
83

82
81

9

30'

5'

30'

45'

45'

45'

31
'

31
'

80' 160'

22
'

22
'

160'

45
'

22'

22'

160' 160'

80
'

12
0'

16
0'

80
'

12
0'

16
0'

16
0'

9'

20'

22'22'

30.52'

30.15'

30
.2

5'

175'100'

12
'

10
'

10.18'

30'

45'

30'

10
'

45'

45'

5'

24'
10

'

17'

9.57'

16'

10'

10.18'

17
'

45'

80'

29.93'

30'

45
'

160'

R35
'

R35'

R40'

R
25

'

R89'

R111'

R35'

R40
'

R111'
R3

5' R35'

R
100'

R100'

R
89'

R111'

R100'

R2
9'

26.71'
4'

R89'

20'

9'

R5'

R5
'

EXISTING
DEVELOPMENT

(800) 416 - 8136

ALBANY
1741 PHILEMA RD

WARNER ROBINS
110-A TOMMY STALNAKER DR.

VALDOSTA
4560-E VALNORTH DR.

SHEET

OF

9

10

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

DATENO. DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

DATE OF PLANS

1

AES PROJECT NUMBER

Z:\Shared\AES, LLC\Projects\2022\60065.00 Stoker Hamilton Green (Bemiss Rd Townhomes) Valdosta, GA\DWG\60065C_B01.dwg - 12/19/2024 12:19 PM

1 1

HA
MI

LT
ON

 GR
EE

N T
OW

NH
OM

ES
 PH

AS
E I

I
ST

O
K

E
R

 U
TI

LI
TI

E
S

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

- -

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

12/19/2024

62098

VALDOSTA, LOWNDES
COUNTY, GEORGIA

50'0'25'50'

GRAPHIC SCALE 1" = 50'

Know what's below.
Utilities Protection Center, Inc.

R

Call before you dig.

PARKING CALCULATIONS:

REQUIRED MINIMUM PARKING STALLS (MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING):
2 SPACES PER DWELLING UNIT
92 DWELLING UNITS * 2 SPACES = 184 SPACES REQUIRED

REQUIRED MINIMUM PARKING STALLS (PUBLIC PARK/RECREATION FACILITY):
1 SPACE PER 1,000 SF OF ACTIVE USE AREA
±9,000 SF OF ACTIVE USE AREA /1,000 SF = 9 SPACES REQUIRED

TOTAL REQUIRED: 193 SPACES TOTAL

PROVIDED PARKING STALLS (MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING):
1 SPACE IN GARAGE + 1 SPACE IN DRIVEWAY = 2 SPACES PER DWELLING UNIT
92 DWELLING UNITS * 2 SPACES = 184 SPACES PROVIDED

PROVIDED PARKING STALLS (PUBLIC PARK/RECREATION FACILITY):
17 STANDARD SPACES & 1 HANDICAPPED SPACE = 18 SPACES PROVIDED

TOTAL PROVIDED: 202 SPACES TOTAL

GENERAL SITE NOTES:

1. ANY SUCH DEPICTED MINIMUM BUILDING SETBACKS ARE SUBJECT TO
CHANGE PURSUANT TO THE LOWNDES COUNTY UNIFIED LAND
DEVELOPMENT CODE (ULDC), AND THERE MAY BE SEPARATION
REQUIREMENTS BETWEEN BUILDINGS AND ANY PLATTED EASEMENTS.

2. ALL FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATIONS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 6" HIGHER
THAN THE HIGHEST POINT OF THE CURB BETWEEN PROPERTY LINES.

3. TOTAL WIDTH OF STREETS (26 FEET - TWO 11' LANES), INCLUDES LANE
WIDTH PLUS CURB AND GUTTER (BACK OF CURB TO BACK OF CURB). ALL
STREETS TO USE 24" CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER ("MIAMI" TYPE).

4. HANDICAPPED PARKING AND ACCESSIBLE ROUTES SHALL MEET THE
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACTS STANDARDS FOR ACCESSIBLE
DESIGN - LATEST EDITION. SIDEWALKS SHALL NOT EXCEED 5% MAXIMUM
LONGITUDINAL SLOPE AND 2% MAXIMUM CROSS SLOPE. ACCESSIBLE
PARKING STALLS SHALL NOT EXCEED 2% MAXIMUM SLOPE IN ALL
DIRECTIONS. ACCESSIBLE RAMPS SHALL NOT EXCEED 12H:1V GRADE.

5. ALL SIGNS AND STRIPING SHALL CONFIRM TO THE MANUAL ON UNIFORM
TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES (MUTCD) - LATEST EDITION AND/OR
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

6. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE MEASURED TO THE FACE OF CURB (WHEN PRESENT),
EDGE OF ASPHALT AND/OR EDGE OF BUILDING.

7. HORIZONTAL DATA SHOWN HEREON IS BASED ON NAD83 (GA WEST ZONE).
VERTICAL DATA SHOWN HEREON IS BASED ON NAVD 88(12B).

8. STORMWATER MANAGEMENT WILL BE DIRECTED TO ON-SITE RETENTION
FACILITY.

9. TOWNHOMES WILL BE SERVED BY LOWNDES COUNTY WATER AND SEWER.

10. THE PROPOSED USE FOR THE PROPERTY IS THE DEVELOPMENT OF AN 80
UNIT/TOWNHOME MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING COMMUNITY.

11. HAMILTON GREEN TOWNHOME HOA WILL RETAIN OWNERSHIP,
MANAGEMENT, MAINTENANCE, AND OPERATION OF INTERNAL
DRIVEWAYS, OPEN/COMMON AREAS, STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AREAS,
LIFT STATION, AND RECREATIONAL AREAS.

12. AT LEAST TWENTY-FIVE (25) PERCENT OF THE REQUIRED TREES
INSTALLED IN THE LANDSCAPED BUFFER AND TO MEET TREE PLANTING
REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE CANOPY TREES. EXISTING TREES, WHICH ARE
FOUR (4) INCHES DBH OR LARGER, AND SHRUBS MAY BE COUNTED
TOWARD MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS FOR LANDSCAPED BUFFERS AND
TREE RETENTION.

13. AT LEAST TEN (10) PERCENT OF THE TOTAL GROSS LAND AREA OF THE
DEVELOPMENT SITE SHALL BE LANDSCAPED. AT LEAST FOUR (4) SHADE
TREES PER ACRE SHALL BE PROVIDED, WHICH MAY INCLUDE EXISTING
TREES AND TREES REQUIRED FOR BUFFERS.

14. THE LANDSCAPE BUFFER AREA SHALL CONSIST OF A MINIMUM OF FOUR (4)
SHADE TREES AND TWENTY-FIVE (25) SHRUBS PER 100 LINEAR FEET.
SHRUBS SHALL BE AT LEAST EIGHTEEN (18) INCHES IN HEIGHT AT THE
TIME OF INSTALLATION.

15. EXISTING TREES AND SHRUBS TO BE RETAINED ALONG THE EAST
LANDSCAPE BUFFER. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH LOCAL COUNTY
OFFICIALS TO INSTALL ADDITIONAL LANDSCAPING IN PARKING AREAS,
COMMON AREAS, AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AREAS TO MEET
LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS.

16. THE DEVELOPER SHALL SELL TOWNHOMES AS A BUILDING RATHER THAN
INDIVIDUAL LOTS.

HATCH LEGEND:

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

HEAVY DUTY
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

KEY NOTES:

COMMON AREA

±2,600 SF POOL AREA (65' X 40')

300 SF MAIL KIOSK

EXISTING OPAQUE FENCE

12' X 18' DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

PROPOSED DECELERATION LANE

TP 2 PAVEMENT MARKING ARROW (TYP.)

GAZEBO AND PICNIC AREA

SANITARY SEWER LIFT STATION

6' CHAIN-LINK FENCE W/ GATE

24" CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER
("MIAMI" TYPE)

30" GDOT CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

CONCRETE CURB TRANSITION

STOP SIGN - 36"X36" (R1-1)

25 MPH SPEED LIMIT SIGN (R2-1) AND
SLOW CHILDREN AT PLAY SIGN ON SAME
POST

24" WIDE THERMOPLASTIC WHITE STOP
BAR STRIPING

5" WIDE SOLID DOUBLE YELLOW
STRIPING (± 67 LF)

5" WIDE SOLID WHITE STRIPING

5" WIDE WHITE MINI SKIP STRIPING (2'
STRIPE, 6" GAP)

8" WIDE SOLID WHITE GDOT CROSSWALK
(GDOT DETAIL T-11A)

RADIAL SIDEWALK CURB RAMP (TYPICAL)

TEN (10) FOOT UTILITY EASEMENT

6' OPAQUE FENCE W/ GATE

RELOCATED "DO NOT ENTER" SIGN

RELOCATED "WRONG WAY" SIGN

RELOCATED POWER POLE

330 SF OFFICE / RESTROOM (22' X 15')

264 SF GRILL AREA (22' X 12')

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

COR OVERLAY DISTRICT
REQUIREMENTS:

1. LOT WIDTH:
REQUIRED LOT WIDTH FRONTING
DESIGNATED CORRIDOR ROAD = 250 LF
PROVIDED PROPERTY FRONTAGE = ±735 LF

2. TRAFFIC CIRCULATION AND ACCESS:
ENTRANCE DRIVE/ACCESS TO PROPERTY IS
LOCATED AT A MEDIAN CUT ALONG THE
BEMISS ROAD OVERLAY CORRIDOR.

3. INTERCONNECTIVITY:
REQUIRED CONNECTIVITY (ROAD
FRONTAGE BETWEEN 500 FT AND 1,000 FT

AT LEAST 1 ADJOINING PROPERTY AND
ALL ADJOINING LOTS WITH LESS THAN 
500 FT ROAD FRONTAGE

PROVIDED CONNECTIVITY TO TWO 
ADJOINING  PROPERTIES

4. ALL SIGNS WITHIN THE CORRIDOR ROAD
OVERLAY DISTRICT SHALL CONFORM TO
THE PROVISIONS ESTABLISHED IN
SECTION 5.04.00 AND SHALL ALSO INCLUDE
THE STANDARDS SET FORTH IN SECTION
4.02.01.C.5.

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

GDOT ASPHALT
PAVEMENT

22

G E O R G I A

CERT IF I CATE  OF  AUTHOR
I T

Y

ADVANCED
ENGINEERING
SERVICES, LLC.
No. PEF008177

EXP. 06/30/2024

G E O R G I A

B .  MATTHEW  INMAN

REGI STERED

ENG I NEER

No. PE30411
PROFESSIONAL

12/19/2024

23

24

25

26

SITE INFORMATION

PROJECT ADDRESS LAND LOT 131, 11TH LAND DISTRICT,
VALDOSTA, GEORGIA

PARCEL NUMBER 0145D 006A (7.32 AC) & 0145D 007A (1.12
AC)

PARCEL ZONING CG

PROJECT AREA 8.44 ACRES

APPROXIMATE IMPERVIOUS AREA ± 155,142 SF = 3.56 AC (42%)

APPROXIMATE OPEN/COMMON AREA ± 163,350 SF = 3.75 AC (44%)

APPROXIMATE LIFT STATION AREA ± 4,101 SF = 0.09 AC (<1%)

APPROXIMATE RECREATION AREA ± 45,199 SF = 1.04 AC (14%)

BUILDING DATA - 92 TOWNHOMES BUILDING SQ. FOOTAGE

(8) 8 UNITS = 64 TOWNHOMES ±7,200 SF (GROUND FLOOR) - 57,600

(2) 6 UNITS = 12 TOWNHOMES ±5,400 SF (GROUND FLOOR) - 10,800

(4) 4 UNITS = 16 TOWNHOMES ±3,600 SF (GROUND FLOOR) - 14,400 SF
TOTAL

BUILDING SETBACK LANDSCAPE SETBACK

FRONT 20' FRONT 0'

SIDE 5' SIDE 0'

REAR 30' REAR 0'

27

28

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' MIN. SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
30' MIN. SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
30' MIN. SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
LANDSCAPED BUFFER AREA (EXISTING LIVE OAKS AND EVERGREEN TREES)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
LANDSCAPED BUFFER AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
LANDSCAPED BUFFER AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
LANDSCAPED BUFFER AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
N/F PROPERTY OF KENNETH E. GORDON LISA GORDON TAX MAP 0145D/007B ZONED (C-H)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
N/F PROPERTY OF DANIEL WRIGHT JULIA WRIGHT TAX MAP 0145D/0041 ZONED (R-21)

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
N/F PROPERTY OF GREGORY K. BOATRIGHT TAX MAP 0145D/0042 ZONED (R-21)

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
N/F PROPERTY OF SHELDON L. DERSKEN TAX MAP 0145D/0043 ZONED (R-21)

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
N/F PROPERTY OF JOSEPH J. GAISS JOELLA M. GAISS TAX MAP 0145D/0044 ZONED (R-21)

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
N/F PROPERTY OF JUAN M. QUIROGA TAX MAP 0145D/0045 ZONED (R-21)

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
N/F PROPERTY OF JOHN W. CAMERON MARY BETH M. CAMERON TAX MAP 0145D/0109 ZONED (R-A)

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
N/F PROPERTY OF BEVERLY THAXTON TAX MAP 0145D/006 ZONED (E-A)

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
IPF 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
IPF 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
IPF 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
BEMISS CORRIDOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
INV 18" RCP 242.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
INV 18" RCP 242.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
CATCH BASIN RIM 245.72' INV IN 240.52' INV OUT 240.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
DOUBLE DROP INLET RIM 244.60' INV OUT 239.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
SSMH RIM 243.34' INV IN 236.24' INV OUT 236.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
SSMH RIM 245.04' INV IN 235.44' INV OUT 235.44'

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
SSMH RIM 242.50' INV IN 234.70' INV OUT 234.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
FFE @ SUBWAY ENTRANCE 243.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
N/F PROPERTY OF MIGUEL A. VELAZQUEZ TAX MAP 0145D/0040 ZONED (R-21)

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
N/F PROPERTY OF GEORGE CHAMBERS BRYNDA DENICE CHAMBERS TAX MAP 0145D/0039 ZONED (R-21)

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
SEPTIC  LIFT STATION?

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
WATER VALVE?

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
BENCHMARK 1/2" REBAR 243.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
24" RCP  242.66' IN

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
LANDSCAPED BUFFER AREA (EXISTING LIVE OAKS AND EVERGREEN TREES)

User
Snapshot









LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: REZ-2025-03 Thomas Linville, 4888 Break Thru Rd., ~16.3ac, 
R-1 to E-A, Well & Septic  

  
 

  

DATE OF MEETING: February 11, 2025   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: N/A 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: REZ-2025-03 Thomas Linville, 4888 Break Thru Rd., 
~16.3ac, R-1 to E-A, Well & Septic 

 
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: This request represents a change in zoning on the subject property from R-1 
(Low Density Residential) zoning to E-A (Estate Agricultural) zoning.  The general motivation in this case is for 
the applicant to combine the properties into a single conforming lot for use agriculturally. The subject 
property possesses road frontage on Break Thru Road and Johnston Road, both locally maintained County 
roads, is within the Rural Service Area and Agricultural/Forestry Character Area, which recommend E-A 
zoning.   
  
The TRC analyzed the request, the standards governing the exercise of zoning power set forth in 10.01.05 of 
the ULDC, and factors most relevant to this application, including the neighboring land uses and lot sizes, the 
lack of availability of County Utilities, the viability of well and septic systems, and the unique shape of the 
property, and therefore recommends approval of the request for E-A zoning as depicted on the submitted 
survey. 
 
At the GLPC meeting, two neighbors spoke out regarding concerns of items being stored on the property in 
relation to the applicant's business, and the potential traffic concerns on Break Thru Road, but were 
otherwise supportive of the applicant's right to use their property as they see fit. The Planning Commissioners 
questioned some of the allowed uses in E-A, if there was any means of recourse should a problem arise, and 
being satisfied with Staff's response, voted unanimously (9-0) to recommend approval. 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1) Approve 

2) Approve with Conditions 
3) Table 
4) Deny 

  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 
  
DEPARTMENT: Planning/Zoning                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: JD Dillard 



 

 

  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 







Thomas Linville
Rezoning Request

E-A

R-1

W
IS

E
N

B
A

K
E

R
 R

D

JOHNSTON RD

BREAK T
HRU R

D

Legend

Roads

Railroads

Parcels

Urban Service Area

Zoning Conditions

WET

YES

City Limits

Valdosta Airport

Zoning Districts

C-C

C-G

C-H

CON

E-A

I-S

M-1

M-2

M-3

MAZ - 1

MAZ - 2

MAZ - 3

O-I

P-D

PD-R

R-1

R-10

R-21

R-A

GLPC Zoning

Zoning Location Map

0 175 350

Feet

REZ-2025-03

.

CURRENT ZONING: R-1
PROPOSED ZONING: E-A



W
IS

E
N

B
A

K
E

R
 R

D

JOHNSTON RD

BREAK T
HRU R

D

REZ-2025-03
Thomas Linville

Rezoning Request

Future Development Map

µ

Roads

Functional Classification

1, INTERSTATE

3, OTHER PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

4, MINOR ARTERIAL

5, MAJOR COLLECTOR

6, MINOR COLLECTOR

7, LOCAL

Railroads

0 150 30075
Feet

Legend

Character Areas
Agriculture / Forestry

Community Activity
Center

Downtown

Established Residential

Industrial Activity
Center

Industrial Area

Institutional Activity
Center

Linear Greenspace/Trails

Mill Town

Moody Activity Zone

Neighborhood Activity
Center

Park/Recreation/
Conservation

Public / Institutional

Regional Activity Center

Remerton Neighborhood
Village

Rural Activity Center

Rural Residential

Suburban Area

Transitional
Neighborhood

Transportation/
Communication/Utilities



EE

W
IS

E
N

B
A

K
E

R
 R

D

JOHNSTON RD

BREAK T
HRU R

D

REZ-2025-03

Thomas Linville
Rezoning Request

WRPDO Site Map

Legend

Roads

Railroads

Park

City Limits

Crashzone

Crashzone West

Urban Service Area

Open Water

Valdosta Airport

Wetlands

100 Yr Flood

Hydrology

Drastic

Recharge Areas

Parcels

. 0 300 600
Feet



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: REZ-2025-04 River Run Farm, 6490 River Run, ~27ac., C-C to 
R-21, County Water & Septic  

  
 

  

DATE OF MEETING: February 11, 2025   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: N/A 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: REZ-2025-04 River Run Farm, 6490 River Run, ~27ac., C-
C & CON to R-21 & CON, County Water & Septic 

 
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: This request represents a change in zoning on a portion of the subject property 
from C-C (Crossroads Commercial) zoning to R-21 (Medium Density Residential) zoning. The portion of the 
property zoned CON (Conservation) is proposed to remain zoned CON.  The general motivation in this case is 
for the applicant to develop the property residentially. The subject property possesses road frontage on Lake 
Alapaha Blvd, a locally maintained County Road, is within the Urban Service Area and Suburban Character 
Area, which recommend R-21 zoning.   
  
Historically, the property has been split zoned C-N (Neighborhood Commercial), R-15 (Medium Density 
Residential), and F-H (Flood Hazard) since its conception in the late-eighties. 
  
The TRC analyzed the request, the standards governing the exercise of zoning power set forth in 10.01.05 of 
the ULDC, and factors most relevant to this application, including the neighboring land uses and lot sizes, the 
availability of County water, the viability of septic systems, the location of the wetlands and flood plains, and 
the unique shape of the property, and therefore recommends approval of the request for R-21 zoning as 
depicted on the submitted survey. 
 
During the Planning Commission meeting, the applicant spoke in support of the request, broadly outlining his 
initial and long term plans to develop lots above the minimum standards and potentially join the existing Lake 
Alapaha HOA. Several neighbors spoke in opposition to the request, citing concerns about the stormwater 
drainage along Lake Alapaha Boulevard, the ability of the existing water system to support new growth, and 
the hydrant flow rates, citing Georgia EPD and County reports on the water in the area. The Planning 
Commission then motioned to approve the request for R-21, with the condition that no more than nine (9) 
lots be developed. The motion carried (6-3). 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1) Approve 

2) Approve with Conditions 
3) Table 
4) Deny 



 

 

  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Board's Pleasure 
  
DEPARTMENT: Planning/Zoning                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: JD Dillard 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 



ARROW ENGINEERING & CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, LLC 

2621 HWY 84 E Valdosta, Georgia 31606 (229)255-2120 

 

LETTER OF INTENT 
JD Dillard  

327 N. Ashley St. – 2nd Floor 

Valdosta, GA 31601 

 

RE: Rezoning for H. Larry Sanders 

Mr. Dillard, 

 

On behalf of Mr. H. Larry Sanders, Arrow Engineering & Construction Services, LLC submits 
this letter of intent to subdivide and rezone a 27.07-acre tract of land on Lake Alapaha Blvd. C-C 
to R-21. 

 

We are currently proposing to subdivide the property for the placement of 9± multiple single-
family residences. According to the Greater Lowndes Comprehensive Plan and VALOR GIS 
information, the property is in a suburban area. The proposed zoning meets the suburban 
characteristics of high to moderate building separation, low pedestrian orientation, and 
predominantly residential use. 

 

Thank you for your consideration of this matter. 

 

 

 

 

H. Larry Sanders P.E. 



N
8
7
°
 0

5
' 3

8
.5

5
"
W

1
2
4
.0

1
'

L

A

K

E

 

A

L

A

P

A

H

A

 

B

L

V

D

.

 

6

0

'

 

R

/

W

U

S

 

H

W

Y

 

8

4

R

A

I

L

 

R

O

A

D

S

E

A

B

O

A

R

D

 

C

O

A

S

T

 

L

I

N

E

 

R

A

I

L

R

O

A

D

L

A

K

E

 

A

L

A

P

A

H

A

 

B

L

V

D

.

 

6

0

'

 

R

/

W

L

A

K

E

 

A

L

A

P

A

H

A

 

B

L

V

D

.

 

6

0

'

 

R

/

W

S

E

A

B

O

A

R

D

 

C

O

A

S

T

 

L

I

N

E

 

R

A

I

L

R

O

A

D

L

A

K

E

 

A

L

A

P

A

H

A

 

B

L

V

D

.

 

6

0

'

 

R

/

W

L

A

K

E

 

A

L

A

P

A

H

A

 

B

L

V

D

.

 

6

0

'

 

R

/

W

S

3

3

°

 

2

2

'

 

4

7

.

2

7

"

W

5

8

5

.

7

8

'

N

7

0

°

 

2

8

'

 

4

6

.

4

2

"

W

1

1

0

.

6

2

'

S

3

5

°

 

2

1

'

 

1

2

.

5

1

"

W

8

3

.

4

9

'

N

6

5

°

 

0

8

'

 

3

1

.

4

3

"

E

 

 

1

1

9

0

.

3

4

'

S

2

4

°

 

5

1

'

 

2

8

.

4

6

"

E

5

0

.

0

0

'

S

6

5

°

 

0

7

'

 

0

1

.

6

0

"

W

 

 

3

3

8

.

1

9

'

N

3

3

°

 

2

2

'

 

0

9

.

4

3

"

W

2

8

.

7

2

'

N

2

7

°

 

1

4

'

 

5

6

.

4

4

"

W

2

4

0

.

6

9

'

S

6

8

°

 

2

2

'

 

3

3

.

8

7

"

E

 

 

5

8

.

0

4

'

S

6

4

°

 

2

4

'

 

0

6

.

6

1

"

E

 

 

2

1

8

.

2

7

'

S

7

0

°

 

0

0

'

 

1

6

.

4

9

"

E

 

 

3

3

9

.

8

7

'

S

5

1

°

 

0

2

'

 

2

4

.

2

6

"

E

2

5

.

1

5

'

N

4

8

°

 

5

6

'

 

4

2

.

6

6

"

E

6

4

8

.

4

8

'

N
8
7
° 3

7
' 
3
0
.1

9
"E

3
9
3
.7

6
'

N
2
°
 
2
7
'
 
4
6
.
0
0
"
W

1
4
8
.
9
5
'

S
8
7
°
 3

2
' 
1
8
.2

4
"W

2
6
1
.7

3
'

N

6

°

 
3

9

'
 
5

4

.
5

0

"
W

3

1

2

.
4

6

'

S39° 35' 54.67"W

163.64'

N
8
7
°
 0

5
' 3

8
.5

5
"
W

1
2
4
.0

1
'

N
8
7
°
 0

5
' 3

8
.5

5
"
W

1
2
4
.0

1
'

S
8
7
°
 2

6
' 
1
4
.4

7
"W

9
4
.1

3
'

S
8
7
°
 2

6
' 
1
4
.4

7
"W

1
4
2
.7

5
'

Know what's  below
Call  before you dig.

PROJECT:

SHEET

  
A

R
R

O
W

 E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
  

&
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N
 S

E
R

V
I
C

E
S

26
21

 H
W

Y 
84

 E
AS

T
VA

LD
O

ST
A,

 G
A 

31
60

6
(2

29
)2

55
-2

12
0

LS
AN

DE
RS

@
AR

RO
W

EN
G

IN
EE

RI
N

G
G

RO
U

P.
CO

M

C
R
D

 
F
I
L
E

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

 
B
Y

D
R
A
W

N
 
B
Y

P
R
O

J
E
C
T

D
A
T
E

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

BY

©
  C

O
PY

RI
G

H
T 

20
25

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G
 IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

AR
RO

W
 E

N
G

IN
EE

RI
N

G
 A

N
D 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

AN
D 

M
AY

 N
O

T 
BE

 R
EP

RO
DU

CE
D

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
. D

O
CU

M
EN

TS
 O

F 
PU

BL
IC

 R
EC

O
RD

 M
AY

 B
E 

CO
PI

ED
 B

U
T 

N
O

T 
AL

TE
RE

D.

R
I
V

E
R

 R
U

N
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

L
O

C
A
T
E
D

 
I
N

 
L
L
 
4
2
3
 
O

F
 
T
H

E
 
1
1
T
H

 
L
.
D

.
 

L
O

W
N

D
E
S
 
C
O

U
N

T
Y
-
N

A
Y
L
O

R
,
 
G

A

H
.
 L

A
R

R
Y

 S
A

N
D

E
R

S

1/
7/

20
25

24
01

1

24011

 
R
E
Z
O

N
I
N

G
 
P
L
A
N

 
F
O

R
:
 

G
N

S

H
LS

C2.0

--
-

--
-

--
-

NOTE:

LOCATION OF UTILITIES SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE.

PLEASE CONTACT GEORGIA 811 BEFORE DIGGING.

ARROW ENGINEERING & CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

DOES NOT GUARANTEE THAT ALL EASEMENTS

WHICH MAY AFFECT THE PROPERTY ARE SHOWN

HEREON AND ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR FAILURE

TO CONFIRM UTILITY LOCATIONS PRIOR TO ANY

DIGGING OR CONSTRUCTION.

LEVEL II CERT. #28713

PROPOSED R-21

15.30 AC

00 100' 200'

1" = 100'

CON

2.55 AC

C-C

11.77 AC

CURRENT ZONING LEGEND

ZONING C-C

ZONING CON

ZONING R-21

M:\2024\24011 River Run Development\02 DESIGN\01 DWG\24011-Rezoning.dwg, 1/7/2025 9:18:01 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
24" X 16" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
INV. = 165.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
INV. = 165.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
INV. = 160.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
INV. = 162.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
16" C.M.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
24" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
INV. = 166.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
INV. = 166.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
24" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
INV. = 165.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
INV. = 165.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
INV. = 165.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
INV. = 165.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
24" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
INV. = 167.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
INV. = 167.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
24" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
164

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
164

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
164

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
164

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
164

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
30' DRAINAGE EASEMENT D.B. 5511 PG. 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
LOT 7 LAKE ALAPAHA PLANTATION P.C. "A" PG. 3588

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
LOT 7 LAKE ALAPAHA PLANTATION P.C. "A" PG. 3588

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
LOT 7 LAKE ALAPAHA PLANTATION P.C. "A" PG. 3588

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
LOT 10 LAKE ALAPAHA PLANTATION P.C. "A" PG. 3588

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
LOT 11 LAKE ALAPAHA PLANTATION P.C. "A" PG. 3588

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
MARDUN VENTURES, LLC SUBDIVISION PHASE I P.C. "C" PG. 1741

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
MARDUN VENTURES, LLC SUBDIVISION PHASE I P.C. "C" PG. 1741

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
MARDUN VENTURES, LLC SUBDIVISION PHASE I P.C. "C" PG. 1741

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
N/F MARDUN VENTURES, LLC PROPERTY D.B. 6592 PG. 733 P.C. "A" PG. 3588

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
TRACT "A" ROBERT & TONY DINKINS SUBDIVISION P.C. "B" PG. 83

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
TRACT "B" ROBERT & TONY DINKINS SUBDIVISION P.C. "B" PG. 83

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
TRACT "C" ROBERT & TONY DINKINS SUBDIVISION P.C. "B" PG. 83

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
BENCHMARK NAIL & RIBBON ELEV. = 168.40' (NAVD 88)

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
BENCHMARK NAIL & RIBBON ELEV. = 167.30' (NAVD 88)

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
EXISTING POND WATER ELEVATION = 153.0' ON 07 / 18 / 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
INV. = 165.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
INV. = 165.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
18" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
L.L. 422

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
L.L. 423

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
L.L. 423

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
L.L. 423

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
L.L. 452

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
L.L. 452

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
APPROXIMATE LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
APPROXIMATE LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
APPROXIMATE LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
24" X 16" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
INV. = 165.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
INV. = 165.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
INV. = 160.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
INV. = 162.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
16" C.M.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
24" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
INV. = 166.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
INV. = 166.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
24" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
INV. = 165.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
INV. = 165.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
INV. = 165.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
INV. = 165.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
24" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
INV. = 167.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
INV. = 167.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
24" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
164

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
164

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
164

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
164

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
164

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
30' DRAINAGE EASEMENT D.B. 5511 PG. 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
LOT 7 LAKE ALAPAHA PLANTATION P.C. "A" PG. 3588

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
LOT 7 LAKE ALAPAHA PLANTATION P.C. "A" PG. 3588

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
LOT 7 LAKE ALAPAHA PLANTATION P.C. "A" PG. 3588

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
LOT 10 LAKE ALAPAHA PLANTATION P.C. "A" PG. 3588

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
LOT 11 LAKE ALAPAHA PLANTATION P.C. "A" PG. 3588

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
MARDUN VENTURES, LLC SUBDIVISION PHASE I P.C. "C" PG. 1741

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
MARDUN VENTURES, LLC SUBDIVISION PHASE I P.C. "C" PG. 1741

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
MARDUN VENTURES, LLC SUBDIVISION PHASE I P.C. "C" PG. 1741

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
N/F MARDUN VENTURES, LLC PROPERTY D.B. 6592 PG. 733 P.C. "A" PG. 3588

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
TRACT "A" ROBERT & TONY DINKINS SUBDIVISION P.C. "B" PG. 83

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
TRACT "B" ROBERT & TONY DINKINS SUBDIVISION P.C. "B" PG. 83

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
TRACT "C" ROBERT & TONY DINKINS SUBDIVISION P.C. "B" PG. 83

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
BENCHMARK NAIL & RIBBON ELEV. = 168.40' (NAVD 88)

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
BENCHMARK NAIL & RIBBON ELEV. = 167.30' (NAVD 88)

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
EXISTING POND WATER ELEVATION = 153.0' ON 07 / 18 / 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
INV. = 165.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
INV. = 165.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
18" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
L.L. 422

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
L.L. 423

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
L.L. 423

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
L.L. 423

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
L.L. 452

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
L.L. 452

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
APPROXIMATE LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
APPROXIMATE LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
APPROXIMATE LAND LOT LINE





US HWY 84 E

LAKE ALAPAHA BLVD

RIVER RUN

REZ-2025-04
River Run Farm

Rezoning Request

Future Development Map

µ

Roads

Functional Classification

1, INTERSTATE

3, OTHER PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

4, MINOR ARTERIAL

5, MAJOR COLLECTOR

6, MINOR COLLECTOR

7, LOCAL

Railroads

0 150 30075
Feet

Legend

Character Areas
Agriculture / Forestry

Community Activity
Center

Downtown

Established Residential

Industrial Activity
Center

Industrial Area

Institutional Activity
Center

Linear Greenspace/Trails

Mill Town

Moody Activity Zone

Neighborhood Activity
Center

Park/Recreation/
Conservation

Public / Institutional

Regional Activity Center

Remerton Neighborhood
Village

Rural Activity Center

Rural Residential

Suburban Area

Transitional
Neighborhood

Transportation/
Communication/Utilities



EE

US HWY 84 E

IRVINS RD

M
U

L
L

IN
S

L
N

LAKE ALAPAHA BLVD

RIVER RUN

Alapaha River

REZ-2025-04

River Run Farm
Rezoning Request

WRPDO Site Map

Legend

Roads

Railroads

Park

City Limits

Crashzone

Crashzone West

Urban Service Area

Open Water

Valdosta Airport

Wetlands

100 Yr Flood

Hydrology

Drastic

Recharge Areas

Parcels

. 0 300 600 900
Feet



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the Lowndes County Tax 
Commissioner to Receive Checks and Money Orders in Payment of 
Taxes and Licenses  

  
 

  

DATE OF MEETING: February 11, 2025   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: -0- 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Resolution Authorizing the Lowndes County Tax 
Commissioner to Receive Checks and Money Orders in Payment of Taxes and Licenses 

 
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: At the request of the Tax Commissioner, the attached Resolution is being 
presented for consideration. It is authorized by Georgia statute. It tracks an identical Resolution approved 
following the prior Tax Commissioner taking office. 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1. Approve Resolution 

2. Redirect 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 
  
DEPARTMENT: County Manager                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: Paige Dukes 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 



A RESOLUTION 
 

AUTHORIZING THE LOWNDES COUNTY TAX COMMISSIONER TO RECEIVE  
CHECKS AND MONEY ORDERS IN PAYMENT OF TAXES AND LICENSE FEES 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to OCGA § 48-5-146, the county governing authority may authorize 

the county tax commissioner to receive personal, company, certified, treasurer’s, or cashier’s 
checks, or bank, postal, or express money orders in payment of taxes and license fees; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Lowndes County Board of 
Commissioners hereby authorizes the Lowndes County Tax Commissioner to receive personal, 
company, certified, treasurer’s, cashier’s checks, or bank, postal, or express money orders in 
payments of taxes and license fees.  
 

This Resolution shall become effective when adopted and shall repeal and supersede all 
previous County ordinances and resolutions concerning this subject. 
 

This Resolution shall remain in full force and effect unless and until it is repealed or 
superseded by the Board of Commissioners. 
 
 SO RESOLVED this 11th day of February, 2025 
 
        
    BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF LOWNDES COUNTY 
 
  
    By: _____________________________________  
           Bill Slaughter, Chairman 
 
 
    Attest: _________________________________ 
                                                           Belinda Lovern, County Clerk 



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: A Resolution Electing Not to Require Mobile Home Decals  
  

 

  

DATE OF MEETING: February 11, 2025   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: -0- 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Resolution Electing Not to Require Mobile Home Decals   
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: At the request of the Tax Commissioner, the attached Resolution is being 
presented for consideration. It is authorized by Georgia statute. Issuing mobile home decals creates an 
expense that does not assist the Tax Commissioner in identifying mobile homes for which the Tax 
Commissioner has not issued a mobile home location permit. 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1. Approve Resolution 

2. Redirect 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 
  
DEPARTMENT: County Manager                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: Paige Dukes 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 



 
 

A RESOLUTION 
ELECTING NOT TO REQUIRE MOBILE HOME DECALS 

 
WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-492 provides the issuance of mobile home location permits 

required by said Code section shall, if required by the governing authority of the county in which 
the mobile home is located, be evidenced by the issuance of a decal which shall reflect the county 
of issuance and the calendar year for which the permit is issued; and 

 
WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-493 provides it shall be unlawful (a) to fail to attach and display 

on a mobile home the decal as may be required by OCGA § 48-5-492 and (b) for any person to 
move or transport any mobile home which is required to and which does not have attached and 
displayed thereon the decal as may be required by OCGA § 48-5-492; and 

 
WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-263(b)(11) provides each member of the county property 

appraisal staff shall, in counties that elect to require decals pursuant to OCGA § 48-5-492, inspect 
mobile homes located in the county to determine if the proper decal is attached to and displayed 
on the mobile home by the owner as provided by law, notify the residents of those mobile homes 
to which a decal is not attached of the provisions of OCGA §§ 48-5-492 and 48-5-493, and furnish 
to the tax collector or tax commissioner a periodic list of those mobile homes to which a decal is 
not attached; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Tax Commissioner of Lowndes County has advised and the Board of 
Commissioners of Lowndes County has concluded issuing mobile home decals creates an expense 
that does not assist the Tax Commissioner in identifying mobile homes for which the Tax 
Commissioner has not issued a mobile home location permit; 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, as authorized by OCGA § 48-5-492, the Board of Commissioners of 
Lowndes County hereby elects not to require the issuance of mobile home permits to be evidenced 
by the issuance of a decal, such that (a) Tax Commissioner of Lowndes County is not required to 
issue decals pursuant to OCGA § 48-5-492, and (b) OCGA § 48-5-493 and OCGA § 48-5-
263(b)(11) are inapplicable in Lowndes County. 

 
This Resolution shall become effective when adopted and shall repeal and supersede all 

previous County ordinances and resolutions concerning this subject. 
 

This Resolution shall remain in full force and effect unless and until it is repealed or 
superseded by the Board of Commissioners. 
 
 SO RESOLVED this 11th day of February 2025 
     
    BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF LOWNDES COUNTY 
 
    By: _____________________________________  
           Bill Slaughter, Chairman 
 
    Attest: _________________________________ 
                                                           Belinda Lovern, County Clerk 



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: Beer and Wine License - Manishkumar Patel of Kasumbal 
2025 LLC, DBA Busy Food Mart, 6901 Bellville Road, Lake Park, GA  

  
 

  

DATE OF MEETING: February 11, 2025   
    

BUDGET IMPACT:  
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(  ) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Beer and Wine License - Manishkumar Patel of 
Kasumbal 2025 LLC, DBA Busy Food Mart, 6901 Bellville Rd., Lake Park, GA 

 
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: Manishkumar Patel of Kasumbal 2025 LLC, DBA Busy Food Mart, located at 6901 
Bellville Road, Lake Park, is requesting a license for the sale of beer and wine for consumption off 
premises.  This is due to a change in ownership.  The ordinance and guidelines for approval of the license have 
been met and upon approval by the Board, the license shall be granted. 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1.  Approval of the Beer and Wine License 

2.  Board's Pleasure 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 
  
DEPARTMENT: Finance                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: Stephanie Black 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 



























LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: New Endpoint Detection and Response (EDR) Software  
  

 

  

DATE OF MEETING: February 11, 2025   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: $44,800.00 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

(X) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(  ) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: New EDR Software  
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: Lowndes County's EDR software was acquired by another company, and we 
have been unable to obtain a renewal quote. As a result, our department initiated a search for alternative 
solutions, evaluating four different vendors based on features, pricing, and overall value. 
 
A proof of concept was done with three selected vendors by installing their software on a sample set of 
computers for testing and results analysis.  The vendors' names have been omitted for security reasons.  It 
was determined that Vendor A, who was the lowest of the four quotes, best meets the county's needs.  
We received pricing from the below vendors:  
 
Vendor A - $44,800.00 per year with a three-year commitment.   
Vendor B - $89,306.00 for one year 
Vendor C - $53,044.50 for one year 
Vendor D - $89,488.02 for one year 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1. Approve Vendor A. 

2. Board's Peasure 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 
  
DEPARTMENT: ITS                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: Aaron Kostyu 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: Whitewater Road Lift Station Pump  
  

 

  

DATE OF MEETING: February 11, 2025   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: $46,446.52 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

(X) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(  ) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Whitewater Road Lift Station Pump  
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: The Whitewater Road lift station is a triplex station on our trunk line leading to 
the LAS. One of the older pumps is out of service. The pump was sent to Xylem and the cost of repairs is over 
75% of the cost of a new pump. The new pump comes with a N-impeller which is on the other pumps and 
significantly helps with clogging. Staff recommends purchasing a new pump for $46,446.52 from Xylem, Inc. 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1. Approve  

2. Board's Pleasure 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 
  
DEPARTMENT: Utilities                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: Steve Stalvey 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 



     

 

Page 1 of  4 

 
 
February 3, 2025 
       
LOWNDES CNTY UTILITES DEPT  
PO BOX 1349 
VALDOSTA         GA 31603-1349  
 
Quote # 2024-SAV-0512  
Project Name: LOWNDES COUNTY 
Job Name: Whitewater LS / Repl:3201.180-0840058 
 

Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc. is pleased to provide a quote for the following Flygt 

equipment. 
 
 

 

Qty Description 
1 Flygt Model NP-3202.185 8" volute Submersible pump equipped with a  460 Volt / 3 

phase / 60 Hz 45 HP 1150 RPM motor, 641 impeller, 1 x 50 Ft. length of SUBCAB 
4G16+S(2x0,5) submersible cable, FLS leakage detector, volute is prepared for Flush 
Valve 
 
(Like: 3202.185-0300 less FLS) 

  
  Price USD $ 43,563.52 
  
 Total Price $ 43,563.52 
  
 Freight Charge $ 2,883.00 
  
 Total Price $ 46,446.52 

 
 
Terms & Conditions           
This order is subject to the Standard Terms and Conditions of Sale – Xylem Americas effective on the 
date the order is accepted which terms are available at http://www.xyleminc.com/en-us/Pages/terms-
conditions-of-sale.aspx and incorporated herein by reference and made a part of the agreement 
between the parties. 

 
 
Purchase Orders: Please make purchase orders out to:  Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc.  
Freight Terms:  3  DAP - Delivered At Place  08 - Jobsite  (per IncoTerms 2020) 
 See Freight Payment (Delivery Terms) below. 
Taxes:   State, local and other applicable taxes are not included in this quotation. 

As of October 14, 2024, all orders must meet a minimum dollar value of $1,200. 
Xylem reserves the right to refuse to process any order that does not meet the 
minimum order value requirement. Xylem will support order adjustments to meet 
the minimum order value threshold. 
 

Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc. 
Flygt Products 

128 A Airport Park Drive 
Garden City, GA 31408 
Tel (912) 966-1577 
Fax (912) 966-1579 
 
 
 

http://www.xyleminc.com/en-us/Pages/terms-conditions-of-sale.aspx
http://www.xyleminc.com/en-us/Pages/terms-conditions-of-sale.aspx


     

 

Page 2 of  4 

Back Charges:  Buyer shall not make purchases nor shall Buyer incur any labor that would result 
in a back charge to Seller without prior written consent of an authorized employee 
of Seller. 

Tariff Changes: The prices quoted herein are based on the current tariff rates, duties, government 
charges, and trade regulations as of the date of this quote. If any new tariffs, 
duties, taxes, or similar charges are imposed, or any existing tariffs, duties, or 
charges are increased or modified by any government or regulatory authority 
(collectively, "Tariff Changes"), and such Tariff Changes result in an increase in 
the cost of goods, Xylem reserves the right to adjust the pricing of the affected 
goods to reflect the increased costs. 

Shortages:  Xylem will not be responsible for apparent shipment shortages or damages 
incurred in shipment that are not reported within two weeks from delivery to the 
jobsite. Damages should be noted on the receiving slip and the truck driver 
advised of the damages. Please contact our office as soon as possible to report 
damages or shortages so that replacement items can be shipped and the 
appropriate claims made. 

Validity:             This Quote is valid for thirty (30) days. 
               
 

Terms of delivery: Freight PP/Line Item 

Time of delivery: Approx. 12 -14 working weeks after release of order. 

Terms of payment: 100% N60 after invoice date - upon acceptance of purchase order and 

credit review 
Please note: If this is an FM Factory certified product it must be serviced by an EX/FM Flygt 
manufacture trained technician through an approved Xylem Flygt repair shop to retain qualifying status 
of product to retain the "EX/FM" designation. 
 
 
 
 
Our current delivery lead-times are forecasted estimates only due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 virus 
pandemic and its global effects on commerce, supply chain, and logistics. Xylem will, however, use all 
commercially reasonable efforts to minimize any delivery delay impacts.   
 
 
 
Schedule:                  Please consult your local Flygt Branch Office to get fabrication and 
                                    delivery lead times. 
 
 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this quotation.  Please contact us if there are 

any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 

 

 



     

 

Page 3 of  4 

Kirsten Royals  
Senior Customer Support Coordinator  
  
Cell: 404-831-4726  
kirsten.royals@xylem.com  
Fax: 770-932-4321  
 



     

 

Page 4 of  4 

 

Customer Acceptance           

This order is subject to the Standard Terms and Conditions of Sale – Xylem Americas effective on the 
date the order is accepted which terms are available at http://www.xyleminc.com/en-us/Pages/terms-
conditions-of-sale.aspx and incorporated herein by reference and made a part of the agreement 
between the parties. 
 
A signed copy of this Quote is acceptable as a binding contract. 
 
Purchase Orders: Please make purchase orders out to:  Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc.  
 
 
 
Quote #:  2024-SAV-0512    
Customer Name: LOWNDES CNTY UTILITES DEPT  
Job Name:  Whitewater LS / Repl:3201.180-0840058  
Total Amount:   $ 43,563.52 
(excluding freight) 
 
Signature: _______________________________ Name:_______________________________________ 

(PLEASE PRINT) 
 

Company/Utility:___________________________ PO:_________________________________________ 

Address:_________________________________ Date:________________________________________ 

________________________________________ Phone:_______________________________________ 

________________________________________ 
 

Email:_______________________________________ 
 

________________________________________ 
 

Fax:_________________________________________ 
 

  

  

Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc. 

Flygt Products 

http://www.xyleminc.com/en-us/Pages/terms-conditions-of-sale.aspx
http://www.xyleminc.com/en-us/Pages/terms-conditions-of-sale.aspx


     

 

Page 1 of  4 

 
 
November 12, 2024 
       
LOWNDES CNTY UTILITES DEPT  
PO BOX 1349 
VALDOSTA         GA 31603-1349  
 
Quote # R2024-SAV-0307  
Project Name: Lowndes Co 3201 no data plate repair- 
Whitewater 
Job Name: Lowndes Co 3201 White Water  
 

Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc. is pleased to provide a quote for the following Flygt 

equipment. 
 
Block 1 

 

Qty Description Unit Price Extended Price 
1 SCREW,ALLEN M16 X 60 SS $ 25.00 $ 25.00 
1 PLUG,M30 STEEL $ 48.00 $ 48.00 
1 GROMMET,NBR 32ID 52OD 27L $ 68.00 $ 68.00 
1 SCREW,HEX M20 X 60 SS $ 30.00 $ 30.00 
1 SCREW,HEX M20 X 110 SS $ 26.00 $ 26.00 
1 BRACKET,SLIDING 3" CI $ 2,777.00 $ 2,777.00 
1 STATOR,27-26-6A 230/460V $ 5,714.00 $ 5,714.00 
1 ROTOR UNIT $ 7,961.00 $ 7,961.00 
1 PIPE BEND $ 267.00 $ 267.00 
1 COVER,ENTRANCE CI $ 1,573.00 $ 1,573.00 
1 BAIL,LIFTING STEEL $ 972.00 $ 972.00 
1 IMPELLER,C MT CODE 639 CI $ 7,931.00 $ 7,931.00 
1 COVER,BEARING CI $ 1,709.00 $ 1,709.00 
1 KIT,REPAIR BASIC 3170/3201 $ 9,091.00 $ 9,091.00 
1 FLANGE,ENTRANCE CI $ 304.00 $ 304.00 
9 LABOR,SVC FLYGT,NO TAX   Z1-TP MODELS: 

3000,7000,8000 
$ 165.00 $ 1,485.00 

    
 Total Price  $ 39,981.00 

 
 
Terms & Conditions           
This order is subject to the Standard Terms and Conditions of Sale – Xylem Americas effective on the 
date the order is accepted which terms are available at http://www.xyleminc.com/en-us/Pages/terms-
conditions-of-sale.aspx and incorporated herein by reference and made a part of the agreement 
between the parties. 

 

As of October 14, 2024, all orders must meet a minimum dollar value of $1,200. 
Xylem reserves the right to refuse to process any order that does not meet the 
minimum order value requirement. Xylem will support order adjustments to meet 
the minimum order value threshold. 
 

Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc. 
Flygt Products 

128 A Airport Park Drive 
Garden City, GA 31408 
Tel (912) 966-1577 
Fax (912) 966-1579 
 
 
 

http://www.xyleminc.com/en-us/Pages/terms-conditions-of-sale.aspx
http://www.xyleminc.com/en-us/Pages/terms-conditions-of-sale.aspx


     

 

Page 2 of  4 

 
Purchase Orders: Please make purchase orders out to:  Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc.  
Freight Terms:  3  DAP - Delivered At Place  08 - Jobsite  (per IncoTerms 2020) 
 See Freight Payment (Delivery Terms) below. 
Taxes:   State, local and other applicable taxes are not included in this quotation. 
Back Charges:  Buyer shall not make purchases nor shall Buyer incur any labor that would result 

in a back charge to Seller without prior written consent of an authorized employee 
of Seller. 

Shortages:  Xylem will not be responsible for apparent shipment shortages or damages 
incurred in shipment that are not reported within two weeks from delivery to the 
jobsite. Damages should be noted on the receiving slip and the truck driver 
advised of the damages. Please contact our office as soon as possible to report 
damages or shortages so that replacement items can be shipped and the 
appropriate claims made. 

Terms of Delivery:    Full Freight Allowed 
Terms of Payment:   100% N30 after invoice date.   
   Xylem’s payment shall not be dependent upon Purchaser being paid by any third  
   party unless Owner denies payment due to reasons solely attributable to items  
   related to the equipment being provided by FLYGT.   
 
 
Schedule:                   Please consult your local Flygt Branch Office to get fabrication and 
                                    delivery lead times. 
 
Validity: This Quote is valid for thirty (30) days. 
   Please note that this pricing is valid for 30 days and contingent upon final approval 
  of submittals and release to fabrication by (within 90 days of bid date).  
  This quotation is subject to change if any changes to the specifications  
  or plans are made that alter the scope of supply. 
 
 
 

We do not supply junction boxes, disconnects, surge protection, kellum grips, piping, valves, 

guide bars, pressure gauges, spare parts, labor or any other equipment or installation 

services not specifically indicated above. 
 

We thank you for your interest in Flygt equipment from Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc.. and 

look forward to being of service to  you in the near future. Please feel free to call if you have any 

questions or if you require assistance. 

 
 
 
Sincerely, 

  
Scott Adams Will Tomberlin 
Sales Representative Sales Representative 



     

 

Page 3 of  4 

Phone: 912-966-1577 Phone: 912-966-1577 
Cell: 912-271-4081 Cell: 912-665-4300 
scott.adams@xylem.com will.tomberlin@xylem.com 
Fax: 912-966-1579 Fax:912-966-1579 
 



     

 

Page 4 of  4 

 

Customer Acceptance           

This order is subject to the Standard Terms and Conditions of Sale – Xylem Americas effective on the 
date the order is accepted which terms are available at http://www.xyleminc.com/en-us/Pages/terms-
conditions-of-sale.aspx and incorporated herein by reference and made a part of the agreement 
between the parties. 
 
A signed copy of this Quote is acceptable as a binding contract. 
 
Purchase Orders: Please make purchase orders out to:  Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc.  
 
 
 
Quote #:  R2024-SAV-0307    
Customer Name: LOWNDES CNTY UTILITES DEPT  
Job Name:  Lowndes Co 3201 no data plate repair  
Total Amount:   $ 39,981.00 
(excluding freight) 
 
Signature: _______________________________ Name:_______________________________________ 

(PLEASE PRINT) 
 

Company/Utility:___________________________ PO:_________________________________________ 

Address:_________________________________ Date:________________________________________ 

________________________________________ Phone:_______________________________________ 

________________________________________ 
 

Email:_______________________________________ 
 

________________________________________ 
 

Fax:_________________________________________ 
 

  

  

Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc. 

Flygt Products 

http://www.xyleminc.com/en-us/Pages/terms-conditions-of-sale.aspx
http://www.xyleminc.com/en-us/Pages/terms-conditions-of-sale.aspx


LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: Acceptance of Hazard Mitigation Grant for Generators  
  

 

  

DATE OF MEETING: February 11, 2025   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: $1,451,871 - Lowndes County will receive 100% 
reimbursement of all expenses. 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

(X) FEMA - $1,088,903 
(X) GEMA - $145,187 
(X) Pruitt Health - $217,781 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Acceptance of Hazard Mitigation Grants  
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: In July 2019, the Lowndes County Board of Commissioners authorized staff to 
complete and submit applications for the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) to the Georgia Emergency 
Management Agency (GEMA).  These applications were for generators to provide emergency backup power 
to each of the five Pruitt Health facilities in Lowndes County.  The HMGP requires Lowndes County to be the 
applicant. However, Pruitt Health agreed to provide any cost share over and above the federal and state 
funding amounts. Lowndes County received an award letter via email on February 4, 2025, indicating that the 
applications had been selected for funding. To proceed, Lowndes County needs to execute the Subrecipient 
Agreement and return it to GEMA. 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Subrecipient Agreement documents to accept the grant 

award. 
2. Board's Pleasure 

  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 
  
DEPARTMENT: Emergency Management                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: Ashley Tye 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 



  GEORGIA EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AND HOMELAND SECURITY AGENCY 
   

 

 

  

 

 

 

Post Office Box 18055 •  Atlanta, Georgia 30316-0055   

(404) 635-7200 •  Toll Free in Georgia 1-800-TRY-GEMA • gema.ga.gov 

BRIAN P. KEMP 

GOVERNOR 
 
 

 

JAMES C. STALLINGS 

DIRECTOR 
 

 

January 14, 2025 

 

 

 

Honnorable Bill Slaughter 

Chairman 

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners 

327 North Ashley Street 

Valdosta, Georgia 31601 

 

Dear Chairman Slaughter: 

 

On behalf of Governor Brian P. Kemp, it is my pleasure to inform you that a Hazard 

Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) award has been approved by the Federal Emergency 

Management Agency.  This grant, which has been designated HMGP 4400-0033 will be used to 

purchase and install five (5) fixed generator for to ensure continuity of critical services to the 

community. The total approved cost is $1,451,871 with a federal share of  $1,088,903, state share 

of  $145,187, and a local share of $217,781. 

 

These funds are subject to the execution of the enclosed Recipient-Subrecipient 

Agreement.  Please sign and return the agreement and a fully executed copy will be returned to 

you later for your files. 

 

Thank you for your commitment to protect Georgia citizens.  I appreciate your efforts to 

ensure that Georgia continues to be a safer place for us to live and raise our families. By working 

together, we are continuing to reduce the impacts caused by natural hazards. Should you have any 

questions regarding this grant, please contact Stephen Clark, Hazard Mitigation Manager, at (404) 

635-4573. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

James C. Stallings 

   

lt/rl 

Enclosures 

cc: Ashley Tye, Director 

  Lowndes County Emergency Managenment Agency 

 Frank Maneer, Area Coordinator 

  Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 
 

for,



HMGP 4400-0033 

RSA-4400 -1 

 

 

 
 

HAZARD MITIGATION GRANT PROGRAM 
Recipient-Subrecipient Agreement 

 

On October 14, 2018, the President declared that a major disaster exists in the State of Georgia. 
This declaration was based on damage resulting from COVID-19. This document is the Recipient-
Subrecipient Hazard Mitigation Assistance Agreement for the major disaster, designated FEMA-
4400-0033, under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, Public 
Law 93-288 as amended by Public Law 100-707, 42 USC 5121 et seq. ("The Act"), in accordance 
with 44 CFR 206 Subpart N, Hazard Mitigation Grant Program. Under this Agreement, the interests 
and responsibilities of the Recipient, herein after referred to as the State, will be executed by the 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency (GEMA/HS). The individual 
designated to represent the State is the GEMA/HS Director, the Governor's Authorized 
Representative. The Subrecipient to this Agreement is The LOWNDES COUNTY.  The interests 
and responsibilities of the Subrecipient will be executed by The LOWNDES COUNTY agent, the 
Subrecipient Authorized Representative. 

 
1. The following Exhibits are attached and made a part of this agreement: 

 
Exhibit “A”: Assurances-Construction Programs, Standard Form 424 D 
Exhibit “B”: Project Administration Guidelines: Financial Assistance, Hazard 

Mitigation Grant Program 
Exhibit “C”: Certification regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements 
Exhibit “D”: Certification regarding Lobbying 
Exhibit “E”: Scope of Work 
Exhibit “F”: Progress Payment Request Form 
Exhibit “G”: Discrimination Complaints and Verification Form 
Exhibit “H”: Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Certification 

 

2. Pursuant to Section 404 of the Act, funds are hereby awarded to the Subrecipient on a 75 
percent federal cost share and 10 percent state cost share basis for the hazard mitigation 
project(s) described in Exhibit "E". The Subrecipient shall be responsible for the remaining 
15 percent share of any costs incurred under Section 404 of the Act and this Agreement. 
Allowable costs will be governed by 2 CFR Part 200. 

 
3. If the Subrecipient violates any of the conditions of disaster relief assistance under the Act, 

this Agreement, or applicable federal and state regulations; the State shall notify the 
Subrecipient that additional financial assistance for the project in which the violation 
occurred will be withheld until such violation has been corrected to the satisfaction of the 
State. In addition, the State may also withhold all or any portion of financial assistance 
which has been or is to be made available to the Subrecipient for other disaster relief 
projects under the Act, this or other agreements, and applicable federal and state regulations 
until adequate corrective action is taken. 

 
4. The Subrecipient agrees that federal or state officials and auditors, or their duly authorized 

representatives may conduct required audits and examinations. The Subrecipient further 
agrees that they shall have access to any books, documents, papers and records of any 
recipients of federal disaster assistance and of any persons or entities 



HMGP 4400-0033 

RSA-4400 -2 

 

 

 
 

which perform any activity which is reimbursed to any extent with federal or state 
disaster assistance funds distributed under the authority of the Act and this Agreement. 

 
5. The Subrecipient will establish and maintain an active program of nondiscrimination in 

disaster assistance as outlined in implementing regulations. This program will encompass 
all Subrecipient actions pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
6. The Subrecipient agrees that the mitigation project contained in this agreement will be 

completed by The LOWNDES COUNTY on or before MARCH 1, 2026. Completion dates 
may be extended upon justification by the Subrecipient and approval by FEMA and the 
Governor’s Authorized Representative. 

 

7. The written assurances provided by the LOWNDES COUNTY pertaining to FEMA’s post 
award approval conditions apply to this Award Agreement and are incorporated by 
reference. 

 
8. The Subrecipient shall follow Uniform Administrative Requirements for awards found in 

2 CFR Part 200 and FEMA HMA (Hazard Mitigation Assistance) program guidance to 
implement this award. 

 
9. There shall be no changes to this Agreement unless mutually agreed upon, in writing, by 

both parties to the Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Governor’s Authorized Subrecipient's Authorized 
Representative Representative 

 
 
 
 
 

Date Date 



HMGP 4400-0033 
 

 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COVER PAGE FOR CURRENT 
ASSURANCES- CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RSA-4400 -3 THROUGH 5- 
Exhibit “A” 



 

 

ASSURANCES - CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS OMB Number: 4040-0009 
Expiration Date: 02/28/2025 

 
NOTE: Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions, please contact the 

Awarding Agency. Further, certain Federal assistance awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to additional 
assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified. 

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I certify that the applicant: 
 

1. Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance, 
and the institutional, managerial and financial capability 
(including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share 
of project costs) to ensure proper planning, 
management and completion of project described in 
this application. 

2. Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General 
of the United States and, if appropriate, the State, 
the right to examine all records, books, papers, or 
documents related to the assistance; and will establish 
a proper accounting system in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting standards or agency 
directives. 

3. Will not dispose of, modify the use of, or change the 
terms of the real property title or other interest in the 
site and facilities without permission and instructions 
from the awarding agency. Will record the Federal 
awarding agency directives and will include a covenant 
in the title of real property acquired in whole or in part 
with Federal assistance funds to assure non- 
discrimination during the useful life of the project. 

4. Will comply with the requirements of the assistance 
awarding agency with regard to the drafting, review and 
approval of construction plans and specifications. 

5. Will provide and maintain competent and adequate 
engineering supervision at the construction site to 
ensure that the complete work conforms with the 
approved plans and specifications and will furnish 
progressive reports and such other information as may be 
required by the assistance awarding agency or State. 

6. Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable 
time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding agency. 

 
7. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from 

using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or 
presents the appearance of personal or organizational 
conflict of interest, or personal gain. 

8. Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act 
of 1970 (42 U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed 
standards of merit systems for programs funded 
under one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in 
Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of 
Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F). 

9. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning 
Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which 
prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or 
rehabilitation of residence structures. 

10. Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to non- 
discrimination. These include but are not limited to: (a) 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) 
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, 
color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education 
Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681 
1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination 
on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29) U.S.C. 
§794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
handicaps; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as 
amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse 
Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as 
amended relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of 
drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and 
Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation 
Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or 
alcoholism; (g) §§523 and 527 of the Public Health 
Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290 dd-3 and 290 ee 
3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol 
and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as 
amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, 
rental or financing of housing; (i) any other 
nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statue(s) 
under which application for Federal assistance is being 
made; and (j) the requirements of any other 
nondiscrimination statue(s) which may apply to the 
application. 

 

Previous Edition Usable Authorized for Local Reproduction Standard Form 424D (Rev. 7-97) 
Prescribed by OMB Circular A-102 

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for reviewing 
instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of 
information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for 
reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0042), Washington, DC 20503. 

 
PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT 
AND BUDGET. SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY. 

View Burden Statement 



 

 

11. Will comply, or has already complied, with the 
requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform Relocation 
Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 
1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable 
treatment of persons displaced or whose property is 
acquired as a result of Federal and federally-assisted 
programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real 
property acquired for project purposes regardless of 
Federal participation in purchases. 

12. Will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. 
§§1501-1508 and 7324-7328) which limit the political 
activities of employees whose principal employment 
activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds. 

13. Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis- 
Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act 
(40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract 
Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327- 
333) regarding labor standards for federally-assisted 
construction subagreements. 

14. Will comply with flood insurance purchase requirements of 
Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 
(P.L. 93-234) which requires recipients in a special flood 
hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase 
flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction 
and acquisition is $10,000 or more. 

15. Will comply with environmental standards which may be 
prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of 
environmental quality control measures under the National 
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91- 
190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification 
of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) 
protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) 
evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance 
with EO 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency 
with the approved State management program 
developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 
1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of 

Federal actions to State (Clean Air) implementation 
Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 
1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.); (g) 
protection of underground sources of drinking water 
under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as 
amended (P.L. 93-523); and, (h) protection of 
endangered species under the Endangered Species 
Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-205). 

16. Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 
1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting 
components or potential components of the national 
wild and scenic rivers system. 

17. Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance 
with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation 
Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 
(identification and protection of historic properties), and 
the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 
1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq). 

18. Will cause to be performed the required financial and 
compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit 
Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular No. A-133, 
"Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations." 

19. Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other 
Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies 
governing this program. 

 
20. Will comply with the requirements of Section 106(g) of 

the Trafficking Victims Protection Act (TVPA) of 2000, as 
amended (22 U.S.C. 7104) which prohibits grant award 
recipients or a sub-recipient from (1) Engaging in severe 
forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time 
that the award is in effect (2) Procuring a commercial 
sex act during the period of time that the award is in 
effect or (3) Using forced labor in the performance of the 
award or subawards under the award. 

 
 

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL TITLE 

APPLICANT ORGANIZATION DATE SUBMITTED 

SF-424D (Rev. 7-97) Back 



HMGP 4400-0033 

RSA-4400 -6 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE LEFT BLANK 



HMGP 4400-0033 

-7 
RSA-4400 
Exhibit “B” 

 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
GEORGIA EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
and HOMELAND SECURITY AGENCY 

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 
Project Administration Guidelines: Financial Assistance 

 
This fact sheet provides a synopsis of information contained in the Recipient-Subrecipient 
Agreement and other applicable documents. Its purpose is to provide general guidelines for 
efficient and timely Hazard Mitigation Grant Program project administration. 

 
1. Project Identification – The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) has 

assigned project number HMGP 4400-0033 to this project. Please reference this 
number in all correspondence, as doing so will greatly assist us in processing any actions 
for this project. 

 
2. Documentation – You must keep full documentation to get maximum payment for project 

related expenditures. Documentation will be required as part of the approved Hazard 
Mitigation Grant Program project file. Documentation consists of: 

 
A. Recipient-Subrecipient Agreement 
B. Copies of checks, vouchers or ledger statements 
C. Contracts awarded 
D. Invoices or other billing documents 
E. Progress reports 
F. Record of advance or progress payments (where applicable) 

 

3. Funding – Cost sharing has been established at 75% federal, 10% state and 15% 
applicant. 

 
4. Debarred and Suspended Parties – You must not make any award or permit any award 

(subaward or contract) at any tier to any party which is debarred or suspended or is 
otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal assistance programs 
under Executive Order 12549, “Debarment and Suspension”. 

 
5. Procurement Standards – You may use your own procurement procedures, which reflect 

applicable State and local laws and regulations, provided that the procurements conform 
to applicable Federal laws and standards. Below is a summary of key procurement 
standards that a Subrecipient should incorporate as discussed in 2 CFR Sections 200.318 
to 200.326. 

 
A. Conflict of Interest Policy – The Subrecipient must maintain written standards of 

conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing the performance of its 
employees engaged in the selection, award, and administration of contracts as 
required in 2 CFR Section 200.318. 



HMGP 4400-0033 

-8 
RSA-4400 
Exhibit “B” 

 

 

 
 

B. Procurement – Perform procurement transactions in a manner providing full and 
open completion. Contracts and Procurements must be of reasonable cost, 
generally must be competitively bid, and must comply with Federal, State, and 
local procurement standards. FEMA finds five methods of procurement 
acceptable: 

 
1) Micro-purchase procedures: an informal method for securing services or 

supplies that do not cost more than $10,000. Micro-purchases may be 
awarded without soliciting competitive quotes if the Subrecipient 
considers the price to be reasonable. 

2) Small purchase procedures: an informal method for securing services or 
supplies that do not cost more than $250,000 by obtaining several price 
quotes from different sources. 

3) Sealed bids: a formal method where bids are publicly advertised and 
solicited, and the contract is awarded to the responsive bidder whose 
proposal is the lowest in price. 

4) Competitive proposals: a method similar to sealed bid procurement in 
which contracts are awarded on the basis of contractor qualifications 
instead of on price. 

5) Non-competitive proposals: a method whereby a proposal is received from 
only one source, because the item is available only from a single source; 
there is an emergency requirement that will not permit delay. 

 
C. Maintain sufficient records to detail the significant history of procurement. These 

records will include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following: rationale for 
the method of procurement, selection of contract type, and contractor selection or 
rejection. 

 
D. Take affirmative steps to assure the use of small and minority firms, women’s 

business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms when possible. 
 

E. Include specific provisions in Subrecipient’s contracts to allow changes, 
remedies, changed conditions, access and records retention, suspension of work 
and other clauses approved by the Office of Federal Procurement Policy. 

 
6. Payments 

 
A. Progress Payments 

 
1) When progress payments are desired, you must submit a written request 

(on provided form at Exhibit “F”) and provide supporting documentation, 
such as an invoice and copies of check. 

 

a. The first expenditure report is due by December 10, 2025, 
which is within 12 months of the FEMA award date. 
Subsequent expenditure reports are due annually or more 



HMGP 4400-0033 

-9 
RSA-4400 
Exhibit “B” 

 

 

 
 

frequently as needed. 
 
 

2) The Hazard Mitigation Risk Reduction Specialist reviews the request and 
supporting documentation. The Hazard Mitigation Manager reviews and 
approves or denies the request. 

 
3) If the request is denied, the Hazard Mitigation Manager will inform you in 

writing that additional documentation is required to support the request. 
 

4) If the request is approved, the Hazard Mitigation Manager will authorize 
payment of the requested amount. 

 
5) Quarterly report submissions must be current in order to receive progress 

payments. 
 

B. Advance Payments – Advance payments will be made on an exception basis only. 
 

7. Subrecipient Performance – The scope of work (see Exhibit “E”) must be initiated 
within 90 days of this award notification. 

 
A. If documentation, inspections or other reviews reveal problems in performance of 

the scope of work, the Hazard Mitigation Manager will inform you in writing of the 
deficiencies. 

 
B. In addition, the State may also withhold all or any portion of financial assistance 

which has been made available under this agreement until adequate corrective 
action is taken. 

 
8. Award Expiration Date 

 

A. The award expiration date runs through MARCH 1, 2026, and has been established 
based on project milestones established by the applicant in their application. The 
award expiration date is the time during which the Subrecipient is expected to 
complete the scope of work. You may not expend FEMA or state funds beyond this 
date. All costs must be submitted for reimbursement within 60 days of the end of 
the award expiration date. 

 
B. Requests for time extensions to the Award Expiration Date will be considered but 

will not be granted automatically. A written request must be submitted to the 
Hazard Mitigation Manager with an explanation of the reason or reasons for the 
delay. Without justification, extension requests will not be processed. Extensions 
will not be granted if the Subrecipient has any overdue quarterly progress reports. 
If an extension is requested, it must be received 90 days prior to the award 
expiration date. When fully justified, the State Hazard Mitigation Manager may 
extend the award expiration date. 



HMGP 4400-0033 

-10 
RSA-4400 
Exhibit “B” 

 

 

 
 
 

9. Project Termination 
 

A. The Recipient, Subrecipient, or FEMA may terminate award agreements upon 
giving written notice to the other party at least seven (7) calendar days prior to the 
effective date of the termination. All notices are to be transmitted via registered or 
certified mail. 

 
B. The Subrecipient’s authority to incur new costs will be terminated upon the date of 

receipt of the notice or the date set forth in the notice. Any costs incurred prior to 
the date of the receipt of the notice or the date of termination set forth in the notice 
will be negotiated for final payment. Close out of the award will commence and be 
processed as prescribed under final inspection procedures described in this 
Recipient-Subrecipient Agreement. 

 
10. Environmental and Historic Preservation Conditions 

 
A. The following Environmental Project Conditions must be followed to ensure the 

project remains in compliance through implementation: 
 

1) Any change to the approved scope of work will require re-evaluation for 
compliance with NEPA and other Laws and Executive Orders. This review 
did not address all federal, state, and local requirements. Acceptance of 
federal funding requires Recipients to comply with all federal, state, and 
local laws. Failure to obtain all appropriate federal, state, and local 
environmental permits and clearances may jeopardize federal funding. 

 
2) If ground-disturbing activities occur during construction or demolition, 

Subrecipient will monitor ground disturbance and if any potential 
archeological resources are discovered, will immediately cease construction 
in that area and notify the State and FEMA. 

 
11. Equipment/Supplies – The Subrecipient must comply with the regulations listed in 2 CFR 

200.313 Equipment, 200.314 Supplies, and must be in compliance with state laws and 
procedures. 

 
12. Award Modifications 

 
A. Any award modifications, including deviation from the approved scope of work or 

budget, must be submitted in writing for approval prior to implementation. Award 
Modifications include: 

 
1) Any revision which would result in the need for additional funding. 

 
2) Transfers between budget categories. 



HMGP 4400-0033 

-11 
RSA-4400 
Exhibit “B” 

 

 

 
 
 

B. The Subrecipient shall follow prior approval requirements for budget revisions 
found in 2 CFR 200.308. Transfer of funds between total direct cost categories in 
the approved budget shall receive the prior approval of FEMA when such 
cumulative transfers among those direct cost categories exceed ten percent of the 
total budget. 

 
13. Appeals – You may submit an appeal on any item related to award assistance. Appeals 

must be submitted to the State Hazard Mitigation Manager within 90 days of the action 
which is being appealed. 

 
14. Progress Reports 

 
A. Quarterly progress reports are required. The report will be supplied to you by 

GEMA/HS on a quarterly basis for your completion. 
 

B. The initial progress report will cover the period through March 31, 2025. It must 
be submitted no later than April 15, 2025. 

 
C. Subsequent reports must be filed by you within fifteen days after the end of each 

calendar quarter (March 31, June 30, September 30, and December 31). 
 

15. Interim Inspections – Interim inspections may be conducted by GEMA/HS staff and/or 
FEMA staff. 

 
16. Project Closeout 

 
A. When all work has been completed, you must notify your Hazard Mitigation Risk 

Reduction Specialist in writing to request project closeout. 
 

B. A desk review will be conducted by your Hazard Mitigation Risk Reduction 
Specialist. 

 
17. Audits – If you receive $750,000 or more in federal assistance from all federal sources, 

not just this award, during your fiscal year, you are responsible for having an audit 
conducted as prescribed by the Single Audit Act and sending a copy to the Georgia 
Department of Audits and Accounts. Mail reports to: 

 
Department of Audits and Accounts 
Non-Profit and Local Government Audits 
270 Washington Street, SW, Room 1-156 
Atlanta, Georgia 30334-8400 

 
 

If you need additional information or assistance, contact the GEMA/HS Hazard Mitigation 
Program at (404) 635-7522 or 1-800-TRY-GEMA. 



HMGP 4400-0033 

RSA-4400 
Exhibit “C” 

-12 

 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements 

 
This certification is required by the regulations implementing the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, 2 CFR 
Part 3001. The regulations require certification by Subrecipients, prior to award, that they will maintain a 
drug-free workplace. The certification set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance 
will be placed when the agency determines to grant the award. False certification or violation of the 
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, 

 
A. The Subrecipient certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by: 

 
(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, 
possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Recipient and Subrecipient’s workplace and 
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition; 

 
(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about-- 

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
(2) The Recipient’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and 
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the 
workplace; 

 
(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award be given a 
copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); 

 
(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of 
employment under the award, the employee will-- 

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and 
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statute 
occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction; 

 
(e) Notifying the agency in writing within ten calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph 
(d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers of convicted 
employees must provide notice, including position and title, to every award officer or other designee on 
whose award activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency has designated a 
central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each 
affected award; 

 
(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under subparagraph 
(d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted— 

(l) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including termination, 
consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973,29 U.S.C. § 701 et seq.; or 
(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation 
program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law enforcement, or other 
appropriate agency; 

 
(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of 
paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f). 



HMGP 4400-0033 

RSA-4400 
Exhibit “D” 

-13 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT “D” 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 
Certification For Contracts, Awards, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements 

 
This certification is required by the regulations implementing the New Restrictions on Lobbying, 
44 CFR Part 18. The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

 
1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 

undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee 
of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of 
any Federal award, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative 
agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any 
Federal contract, award, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

 
2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person 

for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this Federal contract, award, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned 
shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in 
accordance with its instructions. 

 
3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 

documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub awards, and contracts 
under awards, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all Subrecipients shall certify and 
disclose accordingly. 

 
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making 
or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Any person who fails to file the 
required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than 
$100,000 for each such failure. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subrecipient’s Authorized Representative Date 



HMGP 4400-0033 

RSA-4400 
Exhibit “F” 

-14 

 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT “E” 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The LOWNDES COUNTY will purchase, install, and maintain five (5) fixed generators located at the Pruitt 
Health – Crestwood Nursing Facility, Pruitt Health – Parkwood Nursing Facility, Pruitt Health Lakehaven 
Nursing Facility, Pruitt Health – Valdosta Nursing Facility, Pruitt Health – Holly Hill Nursing Facility. 
 
 

 
Shown above is the funding level and scope of work for the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 
project for the LOWNDES COUNTY. Any changes to this spreadsheet MUST RECEIVE PRIOR 
APPROVAL FROM GEMA/HS and will be maintained by GEMA/HS and shall supersede all 
previous versions. 

 
 
 
Generator Size and Location Lat/Long: 

 
1.) Pruitt Health – Crestwood Nursing Facility  250 KW    Fixed Generator  30.864462 ; -83.280889 

415 Pendleton Place, Valdosta, GA 31602 
2.) Pruitt Health – Parkwood Nursing Facility  250 KW  Fixed Generator   30.850300 ; -83.277777 

1501 North Lee Street, Valdosta, GA 31602 
3.) Pruitt Health - Lakehaven Nursing Facility  150 KW  Fixed Generator  30.872403 ; -83.280957 

410 Northside Drive, Valdosta, GA 31602 
4.) Pruitt Health – Valdosta Nursing Facility  200 KW  Fixed Generator  30.86399 ; -83.281672 

2501 North Ashley Street, Valdosta, GA  31062  
5.) Pruitt Health – Holly Hill Nursing Facility  150 KW  Fixed Generator  30.863361; -83.281672 

413 Pendleton Place, Valdosta, GA 31062 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

HMGP 4400-0033 LOWNDES COUNTY  
Generators Estimated Project Costs  

   

    
 

 
   
     



HMGP 4400-0033 

RSA-4400 
Exhibit “F” 

-15 

 

 

 
 
The following conditions apply: 

 
Any change to the approved scope of work will require re-evaluation for compliance with NEPA and other 
Laws and Executive Orders. 
This review does not address all federal, state, and local requirements. Acceptance of federal funding requires 
recipient to comply with all federal, state, and local laws. Failure to obtain all appropriate federal, state, and 
local environmental permits and clearances may jeopardize federal funding. 
If ground disturbing activities occur during construction, applicant will monitor ground disturbance and if any 
potential archeological resources are discovered, will immediately cease construction in that area and notify 
the State and FEMA. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



HMGP 4400-0033 

RSA-4400 
Exhibit “F” 

-16 

 

 

 

 

 
EXHIBIT “F” 

Progress Payment Request Form 
 
 

Date:    

HMGP Progress Payment Request 
 

Instructions: All requests for progress payments must be supported by documentation supporting actual expenditures. Itemize 
each expenditure below to the fullest detail possible, including a reference to specific sites or elements of work. Attach 
documentation that supports this progress payment request, such as copies of bills of sale, invoices, receipts, and checks 
evidencing payment. Do not send originals. Attach a continuation sheet if necessary. 

 
Agreement Number:  HMGP-4400-0033  FEMA Project Number: HMGP-4400-0033 

Subrecipient Name: LOWNDES COUNTY  

 
Site Reference or 
Element of Work 

Approved 
Amount 

Previous 
Payment 

Current 
Request 

Description of Documentation Attached 
in Support of this Payment Request 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

 (from continuation sheet attached) 
SUBTOTAL 

  

TOTAL  

Less Subrecipients Share (15%)  

NET AMOUNT REQUESTED  

 

Under penalty of perjury, I certify that to the best of my knowledge the data above is correct and that all outlays were made in 
accordance with the award conditions, comply with procurement regulations contained within the 2 CFR, Part 200, and that 
payment is due and has not been previously requested. I am familiar with Section 317 of Public Law 93-288, as amended by the 
Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act. 

 
 
 

Signature of Subrecipient’s Authorized Representative (and printed name) 



HMGP 4400-0033 
 

 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “G” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINTS AND 
VERIFICATION FORM 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RSA-4400 -16 
Exhibit “G” 



 

 

 
 

THE GEORGIA EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT AND HOMELAND 

SECURITY AGENCY 
 

Language Access Plan 
2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Post Office Box 18055 • Atlanta, Georgia 30316-0055 
(404) 635-7200 • Toll Free in Georgia 1-800-TRY-GEMA • gema.ga.gov 



Language Access Plan 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 2  of 15 

 

 

 

Purpose 
 

The intent of this Language Access Plan (the Plan) is to ensure the Georgia Emergency 
Management and Homeland Security Agency (GEMA/HS) is prepared to address its 
responsibilities as a recipient of Federal Financial Assistance as they relate to the needs of 
individuals with limited English language skills. The Plan has been prepared in accordance with 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 200d, et seq., and Executive Order 13166, to 
follow when providing services to, or interacting with, individuals who have limited English 
proficiency (LEP). Following these guidelines is essential to the success of our mission to protect 
life and property against man-made and natural disasters by directing the State’s efforts in the areas 
of prevention, preparedness, mitigation, response, and recovery. 

 
GEMA/HS is a recipient of federal funds for a portion of its programs and, thus, obligated to reduce 
language barriers that can preclude Meaningful Access by LEP persons to GEMA/HS programs 
and GEMA/HS’ Subrecipients’ programs. GEMA/HS has prepared this Language Access Plan, 
which defines the actions to be taken to ensure Meaningful Access to Agency services, programs, 
and activities on the part of persons who have LEP. 

 
Authority 

 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
 

Section 601 of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d, provides that no person 
shall “on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied 
the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal 
Financial Assistance.” 

 
Section 602 authorizes and directs federal agencies that are empowered to extend Federal Financial 
Assistance to any program or activity “to effectuate the provisions of [section 601] * * * by issuing 
rules, regulations, or orders of general applicability.” 42 U.S.C. 2000d‐1. 

 
Executive Order 13166 

 
Executive Order 13166, entitled “Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English 
Proficiency,” authorizes the implementation of regulations afforded by Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964. Executive Order 13166 ensures LEP persons have Meaningful Access to federally 
conducted and funded programs and activities. This protection requires that LEP persons be 
provided an equal opportunity to benefit from services that are normally provided in English. 
Executive Order 13166 requires that federal agencies create plans for ensuring that their own 
activities also provide Meaningful Access for persons who are LEP. 

 
Definitions 

 

Beneficiary: The ultimate consumer of federally funded programs who receives benefits from a 
federally funded recipient. 



Language Access Plan 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 3  of 15 

 

 

 
 

Bilingual: A person competent in two languages in equal aptitude in either oral or written form is 
considered bilingual. 

 
Customer: Any individual or organization communicating with a GEMA/HS program. 

 
GEMA/HS LAP Coordinator: GEMA/HS employees that collectively work together as the LAP 
Coordinator. 

 
Federal Financial Assistance: Grants, loans, and advances of federal funds, the grant or donation 
of federal property and interests in property, or any other assistance as specified in 24 CFR Part I 
§ 1.2(e). 

 
Focus Languages: Languages, specifically Chinese, Korean, Spanish, and Vietnamese, identified 
through the Four-Factor Analysis as having a sufficient level of prevalence amongst LEP 
individuals in Georgia to warrant statewide efforts for written translations of vital documents. 

 
Interpretation: The act of listening to a communication in one language (source language) and 
orally converting it to another language (target language) while retaining the same meaning. 

 
Language Access Plan (LAP): A written implementation plan that addresses identified needs of 
the LEP persons served. 

 
Language Assistance Services: Oral and written language services needed to assist LEP 
individuals to communicate effectively with staff, and to provide LEP individuals with Meaningful 
Access to, and an equal opportunity to participate fully in, the services, activities, or other 
programs administered by GEMA/HS. 

 
Limited English Proficient (LEP) Individuals: Individuals who do not speak English as their 
primary language and who have a limited ability to read, write, speak, or understand English 
because of their national origin. For purposes of Title VI and the LEP Guidance, persons may be 
entitled to language assistance with respect to a particular service, benefit, or encounter. (HUD 
LEP Guidance). LEP individuals may be competent in English for certain types of communication 
(e.g., speaking or understanding), but still demonstrate LEP for other purposes (e.g., reading or 
writing). 

 
Meaningful Access: LEP individuals’ accurate, timely, and effective participation in, or benefit 
from, federally funded programs that is meaningfully equivalent to that of non-LEP individuals, at 
no cost to the LEP individual. 

 
Multilingual staff or employee: A staff person or employee who has demonstrated fluency in 
English and reading, writing, speaking, or understanding at least one other language as authorized 
by his or her Division. 



Language Access Plan 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 4  of 15 

 

 

 

Primary Language: An individual’s primary language is the language in which an individual 
most effectively communicates. 

 
Recipient: Qualified applicants in compliance with 24 CFR §1.2(f) who are awarded Federal 
Financial Assistance. The Voluntary Compliance Agreement defines Recipient as “the meaning 
specified at 24 CFR §1.2(0)." 24 CFR §1.2(f) defines Recipient as "any State, political subdivision 
of any State, or instrumentality of any State or political subdivision, any public or private agency, 
institution, organization, or other entity, or any individual, in any State, to whom Federal Financial 
Assistance is extended, directly or through another recipient, for any program or activity, or who 
otherwise participates in carrying out such program or activity (such as a redeveloper in the Urban 
Renewal Program), including any successor, assign, or transferee thereof, but such term does not 
include any ultimate beneficiary under any such program or activity." 

 
Subrecipient: Any public or private agency, institution, organization, or other entity to whom 
Federal Financial Assistance is extended, through GEMA/HS for any program or activity, or who 
otherwise participates in carrying out such program or activity, but such term does not include any 
Beneficiary under any such program. 

 
Translation: The replacement of written text from one language (source language) into an 
equivalent written text in another language (target language). 

 
Policy 

 

GEMA/HS complies with all federal statutes and regulations in the administration of federally 
funded programs. Through the Plan, GEMA/HS will take timely and reasonable steps to provide 
LEP persons with Meaningful Access to programs and activities conducted by GEMA/HS and its 
Subrecipients. Access to GEMA/HS programs and services should not be impeded as a result of 
an individual’s inability to speak, read, write, or understand English. GEMA/HS will review and 
update its LEP Four-Factor Analysis at least every five years. 

 
The Plan requires communication of information contained in vital documents involving 
emergency services to all people in the state of Georgia. All interpreters, translators, and other aids 
needed to comply with the Plan shall be provided without cost to the person being served and will 
be informed of the availability of such assistance free of charge. Language assistance will be 
provided through the use of competent bilingual interpreters, contracts, or formal arrangements 
with local organizations providing interpretation or translation services, or technology and 
telephonic interpretation services. All GEMA/HS employees will be provided notice of the Plan, 
and GEMA/HS employees that may have direct contact with LEP individuals will be trained in 
effective communication techniques, including the effective use of an interpreter. 

 
GEMA/HS will train staff, contractors, and Subrecipient administrators (program administrators 
who are expected to conduct a Four-Factor Analysis and other efforts described within this LAP), 
and local government officials on procedures to implement and continuously monitor and evaluate 
the implementation of LAPs in the state of Georgia. 



Language Access Plan 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 5  of 15 

 

 

 

Pursuant to the requirements of Title VI, Subrecipients of federal funds received through an 
administration grant/award made by GEMA/HS are also required to make reasonable efforts to 
provide timely, Meaningful Access for LEP persons to programs and activities. In order to do so, 
Subrecipients should first conduct an assessment to determine the need for language assistance 
within their service area. This is accomplished by conducting the Four-Factor Analysis, which is 
described in the Plan. After completion of the Four-Factor Analysis, the Subrecipients will 
understand the languages spoken by LEP persons in their service area and can determine how to 
provide needed language assistance. 

 
Based upon the findings of the Four-Factor Analysis, and when deemed necessary, the Sub- 
Recipients should prepare a Language Access Plan addressing the Subrecipient’s plan for ensuring 
Meaningful Access to programs and activities for LEP persons. A Subrecipient may conclude that 
different language assistance measures are sufficient for the different types of programs or 
activities in which it engages. For instance, a Subrecipient may determine that certain activities 
are more important and/or have greater impact on or contact with LEP persons, and thus such 
programs or activities require enhanced language assistance. 

 
Subrecipients are also required to select an individual responsible for coordination of LEP 
compliance, train staff involved in programs and activities on LEP requirements, keep records of 
assistance provided and actions taken, and update the Four-Factor Analysis and LAP, as needed. 
GEMA/HS will monitor all Subrecipients to ensure LEP individuals receive Meaningful Access 
to GEMA/HS federally funded programs. 

 
 

Four Factor Analysis 
 

In developing the Plan, GEMA/HS used the Four Factor LEP analysis, which considers the 
following: 

 
1. The number or proportion of LEP persons eligible to be served or likely to be encountered 

by GEMA/HS programs, activities, or services in the state of Georgia; 
 

2. The frequency with which LEP individuals come in contact with GEMA/HS programs, 
activities or services; 

 
3. The nature and importance of the program, activity or service provided to the LEP 

population; and 
 

4. The resources available to GEMA/HS and the overall cost to provide assistance. 



Language Access Plan 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 6  of 15 

 

 

 
 
 

Factor 1: Number or proportion of LEP persons eligible to be served or likely to be 
encountered by GEMA/HS programs, activities, or services. 

 
GEMA/HS used the U.S. Census Bureau’s American Community Survey (ACS), 2020: ACS 5- 
Year Estimates Data Profile of Georgia to determine the number of LEP persons throughout the 
State. Based on the data provided, GEMA/HS considers individuals who speak English less than 
“very well” as LEP persons. According to the ACS data, the state of Georgia has a total population 
of 9,864,494 persons five years old and older. Of the 9,864,494 persons, the ACS estimates that 
536,491 persons or 5.44 percent of the State’s population are LEP. 

 
 

MOST COMMON LANGUAGES SPOKEN AT HOME 
 

 Total Number 
of speakers 

Number who speak 
English less than 
“very well” 

Percent of total 
population who 
speak English less 
than “very well” 

Total population 5 years 
and over 

9,864,494 536,491 5.44% 

Spanish 781,103 332,566 3.37% 
Korean 47,879 24,252 0.25% 
Vietnamese 52,832 32,588 0.33% 
Chinese (incl. Mandarin, 
Cantonese) 

51,251 25,814 0.26% 

Arabic 20,010 6,025 0.06% 
French, Haitian, or Cajun 53,999 11,186 0.11% 
German or other West 
Germanic languages 

27,898 3,488 .04% 

Russian, Polish, or other 
Slavic languages 

28,301 9,171  

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2020 American Community Survey (Table C16001 5 year estimate) 
 

2020 ACS 5-Year Estimates Detailed Tables for 159 Counties in Georgia 



Language Access Plan 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 7  of 15 

 

 

 

Languages Spoken at Home for the Population 5 Years and Over 
 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2020 American Community Survey (Table C16001 5 year estimate) 
 
 
 

COUNTIES WITH HIGHEST CONCENTRATION OF LEP PERSONS 
 

 Total population 
(>age 5) 

LEP population 
(number) 

LEP population 
(percent) 

Georgia 9,864,494 536,491 5.44% 
Fulton County 990,461 49,465 5.00% 
Gwinnett County 865,453 133,239 15.40% 
DeKalb County 702,759 58,543 8.33% 
Cobb County 710,233 49,527 6.97% 
Muscogee County 181,372 4,258 2.35% 
Chatham County 271,429 9,517 3.50% 
Hall County 188,380 24,750 13.14% 
Cherokee County 238,875 11,768 4.93% 
Henry County 216,771 8,038 3.71% 
Clayton County 265,889 24,413 9.18% 
Richmond County 188,446 3,767 2.00% 
Bartow County 99,540 3,219 3.23% 
Forsyth County 222,422 13,626 6.13% 
Floyd County 91,953 4,632 5.04% 
Paulding County 153,915 2,823 1.83% 

 
 

https://data.census.gov/cedsci/map?text=C16001&g=0400000US13%2C13%240500000&tid=ACSDT5Y2020.C16001&layer=VT_2020_050_00_PY_D1&mode=thematic&loc=32.8027%2C-83.4673%2Cz6.4082


Language Access Plan 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 8  of 15 

 

 

 
Coweta County 137,185 4,339 3.16% 
Douglas County 136,211 6,480 4.76% 
Troup County 65,591 1,186 1.81% 
Rockdale County 84,942 4,714 5.55% 
Walton County 87,651 1,694 1.93% 
Jackson County 65,919 2,223 3.37% 
Barrow County 75,774 4,407 5.82% 
Clarke County 120,443 5,949 4.94% 
Fayette County 108,463 3,994 3.68% 
Spalding County 61,990 851 1.37% 
Newton County 102,864 2,202 2.14% 
Carroll County 111,220 3,567 3.21% 
Lowndes County 108,509 2,127 1.96% 
Dougherty County 82,900 1,076 1.30% 
Glynn County 80,176 2,437 3.04% 
Bulloch County 73,268 1,306 1.78% 
Walker County 65,478 403 0.62% 
Whitfield County 97,331 13,367 13.73% 
Catoosa County 63,441 939 1.48% 
Columbia County 144,458 4,931 3.41% 
Bibb County 142,913 2,909 2.03% 
Houston County 145,032 4,365 3.01% 

 
 

Factor 2: Frequency with which LEP individuals come in contact with programs, activities, 
or services. 

 
GEMA/HS is the lead agency when disasters strike, meaning that GEMA/HS employees are at the 
front line of responding to emergencies and coordinating preparedness and recovery efforts. 
GEMA/HS directs the recovery efforts by the State and helps connect locals to the nonprofit 
organizations that want to offer assistance. Many of these organizations provide emergency 
housing and shelter, access to transportation, food banks, childcare services, and public health 
programs, as well as long-term housing and support. Therefore, as the leaders of recovery efforts, 
our Agency is responsible for properly understanding the needs of the community and making sure 
the necessary resources are being deployed. To accomplish this function, GEMA/HS employees 
must have resources available to communicate with the population in need by having interpreter 
services readily available. Therefore, any information GEMA/HS posts regarding Federal 
Financial Assistance must be disseminated and accessible to diverse racial, ethnic, and LEP 
populations. 

 
GEMA/HS encourages all Subrecipients, organizations, and community leaders to regularly 
engage with the communities they serve, especially those that are LEP. GEMA/HS’ goal is to 
foster relationships with community-based organizations and local service offices, like legal aid, 



Language Access Plan 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 9  of 15 

 

 

 

which have a more established relationship with undeserved communities, like LEP persons, to 
disseminate resources and information. 

 
GEMA/HS anticipates increased contact with LEP persons as natural disasters become more 
prevalent, emergency situations more frequently arise, and the minority populations within the 
state of Georgia continues to grow. Given this likely outcome, GEMA/HS must make all necessary 
preparations to develop products that non-English speakers can red and understand. 

 
Factor 3: The nature and importance of the program, activity or service provided to the LEP 
population. 

 
In general, after a disaster the affected constituency relies heavily on GEMA/HS to lead them to 
resources, programs, and benefits. GEMA/HS must ensure LEP persons have equitable contact 
with these resources, programs, and benefits. Therefore, during post-disaster recovery GEMA/HS 
will work with the hired consultant to encourage affected counties to identify language services 
during the planning process so that LEP persons in concentrated areas of a county are not 
experiencing denial or delay of access to services. 

Factor 4: The resources available to GEMA/HS and the overall cost to provide assistance. 
 

GEMA/HS will take all reasonable steps to ensure Meaningful Access to LEP persons when 
preparing and planning for disaster events and after such events occur. Reasonable steps include 
working with local LEP community organizations, key stakeholders, and other government 
agencies to assist with language assistance. GEMA/HS will also leverage existing relationships 
with community organizations, including faith-based service groups, community associations, and 
service nonprofits in GA Voluntary Organizations Active in Disaster. 

GEMA/HS will maintain LEP maps so that the Agency is consistently updating language materials 
that reflect the most prevalent languages spoken in areas affected by disasters. The Agency intends 
to research ethnic centers and venues diverse communities visit so that recovery and benefit 
information reaches LEP populations. GMA/HS will utilize its public platforms to post guidance 
and public service announcements in non-English languages. 

 
Before, during, and after a disaster, GEMA/HS will coordinate with non-English media—in TV, 
print, and radio, as well as through online platforms and social media—to assist with sharing 
information to LEP populations. 

 
Complaint Procedures 

 

An employee, client, customer, program participant, or consumer of GEMA/HS or of a GEMA/HS 
Subrecipient may submit an LEP complaint concerning the implementation or administration of 
any GEMA/HS program, activity, or service. Any such individual has the right, and is encouraged, 
to file a written complaint with the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA) Office of 
Equal Rights (OER), the DHS’s Office for Civil Rights and Civil Liberties (CRCL), or GEMA/HS. 



Language Access Plan 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 10  of 
 

 

 

 

1. If the complaint involves FEMA programs and activities, and programs and activities 
conducted by FEMA grant recipients, the complaint may be sent directly to FEMA OER 
by calling FEMA at 202-212-3535 and press 1 for Civil Rights, sending an email to FEMA- 
CivilRightsOffice@fema.dhs.gov, or by sending a written explanation to the FEMA OER. 

 

The written explanation should be sent to: 
 

FEMA’s Office of Equal Rights 
Civil Rights Section 
500 C Street, SW 
Room 4SW-0915 
Washington, D.C. 20472 

 
2. LEP complaints can also be sent to the DHS’s Office for CRCL. There are three submission 

methods available. One method for submitting the complaint is via email: 
CRCLCompliance@hq.dhs.gov. A second available method is fax: 202-401-4708. The 
complaint may also be sent via mail to the following address: 

 
U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Office for Civil Rights and Civil Liberties 
Compliance Branch 
245 Murray Lane, SW 
Building 410, Mail Stop #0190 
Washington, D.C. 20528 

 
3. Additionally, LEP complaints can be sent directly to GEMA/HS. A complaint form can 

be downloaded from GEMA/HS’ website and submitted by email to: 
language.access.coordinator@gema.ga.gov. 

 
The completed form may also be sent to: 

 
The Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 
Language Access Coordinator 
935 United Avenue SE 
Atlanta, Georgia 30316 

 
Language Assistance and Interpretation Services 

 

GEMA/HS will improve its ability to identify LEP persons needing language assistance by: 
 

1. Posting notice of the Plan and the availability of interpretation or translation services free 
of charge in languages LEP persons would understand at initial points of contact. 
GEMA/HS will display the language identification “I SPEAK” cards in all GEMA/HS 
offices and when traveling to any county or city when responding to an emergency or 
disaster. 

mailto:FEMA-CivilRightsOffice@fema.dhs.gov
mailto:FEMA-CivilRightsOffice@fema.dhs.gov
mailto:CRCLCompliance@hq.dhs.gov
mailto:language.access.coordinator@gema.ga.gov


Language Access Plan 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 11  of 
 

 

 

 
 

2. All GEMA/HS field coordinators and front-facing staff will also be provided with “I 
Speak” cards to assist in identifying the language interpretation needed if the occasion 
arises. 

 
 

3. All city staff will be informally surveyed periodically on their experience and frequency 
concerning any contacts with LEP persons during the previous year. 

 
 

GEMA/HS will provide an opportunity for LEP persons to request an interpreter. Qualified foreign 
language interpreters will be provided by GEMA/HS, as needed. Whether or not an interpreter is 
used, there will always be information sheets available at headquarters, incident command centers, 
and at any point of contact GEMA/HS has with the community. These information sheets should 
always include questions and answers concerning the need for an interpreter. GEMA/HS will 
maintain a list of qualified interpreters or companies it contracts with to provide such interpreters. 
A qualified interpreter, which may include GEMA/HS personnel, means an interpreter who can 
interpret effectively, accurately, and impartially, using any specialized vocabulary. 

 
Training 

 

1. GEMA/HS will provide periodic training for all employees regarding: 
 

a. Implementing the Plan’s procedures; 
 

b. Understanding the requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, Executive 
Order 13166, and updates to federal guidance on LEP; 

 
c. Locating and contacting language assistance services for GEMA/HS programs and 

Subrecipients’ programs, as needed; 
 

d. Using “I Speak” cards and training Subrecipients to use them; 
 

e. Preparing and testing communication strategies to ensure evacuation 
announcements and critical communications reach LEP populations; 

 
f. Recording and responding to LEP complaints; and 

 
g. Researching and updating population information so that GEMA/HS can best serve 

the current Georgia population. 
 

2. GEMA/HS will facilitate LEP training for Subrecipients. Such training may be arranged: 
 

a. In conjunction with grant management training; 



Language Access Plan 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 12  of 
 

 

 

 
 

b. Online through the GEMA/HS website; 
 

c. At the request of the Subrecipient; or 
 

d. As a result of a grant program review. 
 
 

Notification 
 

GEMA/HS will post the Plan on the GEMA/HS website to notify all interested parties of the 
appropriate procedures for addressing complaints of discrimination concerning the implementation 
or administration of any program, activity, or service receiving Federal Financial Assistance from 
FEMA or DHS. 

 
Complaint Procedures 

 

GEMA/HS Procedures for Processing Complaint 
 

1. A group of GEMA/HS employees will collectively act as the Language Access Coordinator 
for processing complaints made by individuals who believe they have been denied the 
benefits associated with this Plan. 

 
2. If an employee, client, customer, program participant, or consumer of GEMA/HS or of a 

GEMA/HS Subrecipient contacts a GEMA/HS employee and wishes to file a complaint 
against GEMA/HS or a GEMA/HS Subrecipient concerning the implementation or 
administration of GEMA/HS any program, activity, or service involving the benefits of the 
Plan, the GEMA/HS employee shall instruct the complainant to file the complaint in 
writing, in accordance with the procedures above. 

 
3. Any GEMA/HS employee receiving such a complaint submitted directly to GEMA/HS, 

and any GEMA/HS employee wishing to submit such a complaint directly to GEMA/HS, 
shall route it to the Language Access Coordinator. If the complaint is against an employee 
of GEMA/HS, the complaint shall be forwarded to the Language Access Coordinator. 

 
4. For any complaint received by the Language Access Coordinator that is submitted directly 

to GEMA/HS, the Language Access Coordinator shall provide written acknowledgment of 
the complaint to the complainant. 

 
5. The Language Access Coordinator shall refer the complaint to the appropriate entity, which 

may include the Georgia Office of the Attorney General, the OER, or the CRCL. If the 
Georgia Office of the Attorney General either is the agency about which the complaint is 
filed or has a conflict, the complaint shall be referred to the OER or CRCL, as appropriate. 



Language Access Plan 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 13  of 
 

 

 

 

6. Notwithstanding paragraph 5, for any LEP complaint concerning the implementation or 
administration of any program, activity, or service receiving Federal Financial Assistance 
from FEMA or DHS, GEMA/HS shall notify the OER or CRCL, as appropriate, in writing 
of the following: 

 
a. Name of complainant; 

 
b. Entity named in the complaint; 

 
c. Description of the LEP complaint; 

 
d. Steps being undertaken to investigate and resolve complaint; and 

 
e. Interpretation resources to address the information or benefits the LEP person 

needed but did not receive. 
 

In addition, GEMA/HS shall notify the complainant that they may file a complaint directly 
with the OER or CRCL, as appropriate, at the following address or using one of the 
electronic submission methods described above: 

 

FEMA’s Office of Equal Rights 
Civil Rights Section 
500 C Street, SW 
Room 4SW-0915 
Washington, D.C. 20472 

U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Office for Civil Rights and Civil Liberties 
Compliance Branch 
245 Murray Lane, SW 
Building 410, Mail Stop #0190 
Washington, D.C. 20528 

 
 

Monitoring Language Needs and Implementation 
 

GEMA/HS will continuously monitor and track changes in LEP populations, including what 
regions might require new language training services and what non-English languages are 
increasing throughout the population of Georgia. As part of a grant program review, GEMA/HS 
staff will review the Subrecipients’ procedures for adequately providing language assistance to 
LEP persons. If the procedures do not exist, or are found to need improvement, GEMA/HS staff 
will send those findings to Subrecipient. At a minimum, the Subrecipient’s response procedures 
should include: 

 
a. Acknowledge complaint receipt to complainant in writing; 

 
b. Indicate which external agency the complaint is forwarded to for investigation; 

 
c. Comply with the appropriate timeframe by which to forward complaint; 

 
d. Notify GEMA/HS of complaint; and 



Language Access Plan 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 14  of 
 

 

 

 
 

e. Notify complainant that a complaint of discrimination may be filed directly with the OER, 
CRCL, or GEMA/HS, and where to locate those procedures. 

 
Additional Resources: 

• Georgia Department of Human Services (DHS) 
Contact the Limited English Proficiency / Sensory Impairment (LEP/SI) Program 
Fax: (404) 657-1123 
lepsi@dhs.ga.gov 
2 Peachtree Street N.W. 
Suite 29-103 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

 
• Georgia Department of Community Affairs 

Attn: Christy Barnes, DCA LAP Coordinator 
DCA 504 Coordinator 
60 Executive Park South, N.E. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30329-2231 
fairhousing@dca.ga.gov 
404-679-5291 
https://www.dca.ga.gov/sites/default/files/dca_lap.pdf 

 
• iSpeak ATL 

https://www.welcomingatlanta.com/ispeakatl/ 
Mayor’s Office of Immigrant Affairs 
Suite 2400 
55 Trinity Ave SE 
Atlanta GA 303016 
Email: ispeakATL@atlantaga.gov 

 
 

• Interpreters Unlimited (In person only – 800-726-9891) 
• Language Line Services (Telephonic or recording – 800-752-6096) 
• LATN, Inc. (In-person or telephonic – 800-943-5286) 
• Peach State Health Plan Interpreter &Translation Services 
• Contractor Listing for Translation and Interpretation Services 
• Contractor Listing for Linguistic Training and Education Services 
• American Association of Language Specialists 
• American Translators Association 
• Federal LEP Website 

mailto:lepsi@dhs.ga.gov
mailto:fairhousing@dca.ga.gov
https://www.dca.ga.gov/sites/default/files/dca_lap.pdf
https://www.welcomingatlanta.com/ispeakatl/
mailto:ispeakATL@atlantaga.gov
https://www.pshpgeorgia.com/content/dam/centene/peachstate/providers/PDFs/Interpreter-Translation-Services_15.pdf
https://www.gsaelibrary.gsa.gov/ElibMain/sinDetails.do?scheduleNumber=MAS&specialItemNumber=541930&executeQuery=YES
https://www.gsaelibrary.gsa.gov/ElibMain/sinDetails.do?scheduleNumber=MAS&specialItemNumber=611630&executeQuery=YES
https://www.taals.net/
https://www.atanet.org/
https://www.lep.gov/


Language Access Plan 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 15  of 
 

 

 

 

Appendix 1: I Speak Card 
 

 
 



Page 1  of 
 

 

 

 
 

The purpose of this document is to help you file a Limited English Proficiency (LEP) complaint 
concerning the implementation or administration of any program, activity, or service receiving 
federal financial assistance, whether within the Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland 
Security Agency (GEMA/HS) or a sub- recipient. This document is not intended to be used for 
complaints about employment with GEMA/HS. You are not required to use this document to file 
a complaint; a letter with the same information is sufficient. However, if you file a complaint by 
letter, you should include the same information that is requested herein. 

 
1. Information about the person who is filing the LEP complaint: 

 
Name:   

First and Middle (Given Name) Last (Family Name/Surname) 

Phone #: Cell/Mobile:   Home:   Work:    

Mailing Address:     
P.O. Box or Street Address City State Zip Code 

 
Email (Optional):   

 
 

2. Information about the person(s) who failed to properly provide information to the 
LEP person: 

Name:   
First and Middle (Given Name) Last (Family Name/Surname) 

 
Phone #: Cell/Mobile:   Home:   Work:   

 

Mailing Address:   
P.O. Box or Street Address City State Zip Code 

 
 

3. Information about the agency or organization involved: 
 

Name:   
 

Phone #:   
 

Mailing Address:   
P.O. Box or Street Address City State Zip Code 

 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 

 
LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY COMPLAINT FORM 



Page 2  of 
 

 

 

4. Are there other individuals or organizations involved in this LEP complaint? 
 Yes 
 No 

 
If yes, please provide their name, telephone number, and address below: 

 
Name:   

 

Phone #:   
 

Mailing Address:   
P.O. Box or Street Address City State Zip Code 

 
5. Describe the nature of the interaction and any suspected violations: 

 
 
 
 
 

6. Explain in detail what happened, when, and how the person(s) or entity denied 
meaningful access to a GEMA/HS or sub-recipient service, activity, program, or 
other benefit. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7. What other information do you think might be helpful to an investigation? 
 
 
 
 
 

8. Please list below any persons (witnesses, people involved, or others) who have direct 
knowledge of the situation that might be able to provide information to support or 
clarify the complaint: 

 
Name:   

 

Phone #:   
 

Mailing Address:   
P.O. Box or Street Address City State Zip Code 



Page 3  of 
 

 

 

9. Have you or others filed a case or complaint regarding this allegation with any of 
the following? 

 Office of Equal Rights, Federal Emergency Management Agency 
 Office for Civil Rights and Civil Liberties, U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
 U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 
 Other Federal Agency 
 Federal or State Court 
 Other State of Georgia Agency, Authority, or Office 
 Other:   

 

10. Issues with: 
 Spanish (Español) 
 Chinese 中国人 

 Korean 한국어 
 Vietnamese Tiếng Việt 
 French (Français) 

  ىبرع  Arabic 

 Lack of signs informing the public of 
interpretation and translation 

 Lack of forms/materials/notices in a language I 
can understand 

 I was not offered an interpreter 
 I asked for an interpreter and was denied 
 Lack of bilingual personnel, so delay in services 
 The interpreter’s skills were not good 
 I was unable to use the services, programs, or 

activities 
 

11. Information about the person filing this complaint, if the complaint is being 
submitted on behalf of another: 

 
Name:   

First and Middle (Given Name) Last (Family Name/Surname) 
 

Phone #: Cell/Mobile:   Home:   Work:   
 

Mailing Address:   
P.O. Box or Street Address City State Zip Code 

 
Email (Optional):   

 

Signature:   Date:   
 

You may submit the form by email to language.access.coordinator@gema.ga.gov. 
 

Or send via U.S. Mail to the following address: 

Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 
Attention: Language Access Coordinator 
P.O. Box 18055 
Atlanta, Georgia 30316 

mailto:language.access.coordinator@gema.ga.gov


 

 

 
 

THE GEORGIA EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT AND HOMELAND 

SECURITY AGENCY 
 

Responding to Discrimination Complaints 
Relating to Federal Grant Programs 

 
 

Purpose 
2022 

 

The intent of this policy is to ensure that subrecipients which receive grant funds from the Georgia 
Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency (GEMA/HS) do not discriminate against 
any client, customer, program participant, employee, or consumer based on race, color, religion, 
sex, national origin, age, English proficiency, or physical or mental disability. This policy 
establishes the procedures for GEMA/HS employees to follow when they receive or wish to make 
a complaint alleging discrimination concerning the implementation or administration of any 
program, activity, or service receiving federal financial assistance from the U.S. Department of 
Justice (DOJ) or the U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS), whether within GEMA/HS or 
a subrecipient. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Post Office Box 18055 • Atlanta, Georgia 30316-0055 
(404) 635-7200 • Toll Free in Georgia 1-800-TRY-GEMA • gema.ga.gov 



Responding to Discrimination Complaints 
Relating to Federal Grant Programs 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 2  of 
 

 

 

 

Complying with Laws and Policies that Prohibit Discrimination 
 

GEMA/HS shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations 
prohibiting discrimination. GEMA/HS shall appropriately address all complaints from any person 
who believes that a GEMA/HS subrecipient has discriminated against them in violation of federal 
and/or state law or regulation in the delivery of services or benefits. 

 
Policy 

 

All employees, job applicants, clients, customers, program participants, and consumers of 
GEMA/HS and its subrecipients shall be treated equally regardless of race, color, religion, national 
origin, age, English proficiency, or physical or mental disability, sexual orientation, or gender 
identity. 

 
Individuals have the right to participate in programs, activities, and services operated by 
GEMA/HS and its subrecipients without discrimination. Statutes and regulations that apply 
include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 
• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 

race, color, or national origin in the delivery of services (42 U.S.C. § 200d), and the DOJ 
implementing regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 42, Subpart C and D, and DHS implementing 
regulations at 6 C.F.R. Part 21 and 44 C.F.R. Part 7; 

 
• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, which prohibits discrimination on the basis 

of disability in the delivery of services and employment practices (29 U.S.C. § 794), and 
the DOJ implementing regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 42, Subpart G; 

 
• Titles I, II, and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which prohibit 

discrimination on the basis of disability in the delivery of services and employment 
practices (42 U.S.C. §12101-12213 and §12131-34), and the DOJ implementing 
regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 35; 

 
• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, which prohibit discrimination on the basis 

of sex in educational programs (20 U.S.C. § 1681), the DOJ implementing regulations at 
28 C.F.R. Part 42, Subpart D and 28 C.F.R. Part 54, and the DHS implementing regulations 
at 6 C.F.R. Part 17 and 44 C.F.R. Part 19; 

 
• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age in 

the delivery of services (42 U.S.C. § 6102), and the DOJ implementing regulations at 28 
C.F.R. Part 42, Subpart I; 

 
• Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, which prohibits recipients from discriminating 

in the sale, rental, financing, and advertising of dwellings, or in the provision of services 



Responding to Discrimination Complaints 
Relating to Federal Grant Programs 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 3  of 
 

 

 

 

in connection therewith, on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, disability, 
familial status, and sex (42 U.S.C. §3601); 

 
• The Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, which prohibits discrimination 

on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, or sex in the delivery of services and 
employment practices (34 U.S.C. §10228(c), see also 34 U.S.C. §11182(b)), and the DOJ 
implementing regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 42, Subpart D; 

 
• The DOJ regulations on the Equal Treatment for Faith-Based Organizations, which 

prohibit discrimination on the basis of religion in the delivery of services and prohibit 
organizations from using DOJ funding on inherently religious activities (28 C.F.R. Part 
38); 

 
• The Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) of 1984, which prohibits discrimination based on race, 

color, religion, national origin, handicap, or sex (34 U.S.C. §20110(e)); 
 

• The Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) of 2013, which prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of actual or perceived race, color, religion, national origin, sex, gender identity, 
sexual orientation, or disability (34 U.S.C. §12291(b)(13)); 

 
• The DHS regulation, which prohibits discrimination based on religion in social service 

programs (6 C.F.R. Part 19); 
 

• Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access To Services For Persons With Limited English 
Proficiency”, which requires Federal agencies to develop and implement a plan to provide 
services to those persons with limited English proficiency (LEP) to ensure meaningful 
access to programs and activities conducted by those agencies; 

 
• Georgia’s Fair Employment Practices Act of 1978, found at O.C.G.A. § 45-19-29, et seq., 

which prohibits public employers with 15 or more employees from engaging in 
discrimination on account of an individual's race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, 
or disability; 

 
• Georgia’s Sex Discrimination in Employment Act of 1966, found at O.C.G.A. § 34-5-1, et 

seq., which mimics the Equal Pay Act of 1963, in that it prohibits discrimination between 
employees in the same establishment, on the basis of sex, in their compensation for 
comparable work; 

 
• Georgia’s General Age Discrimination Law of 1971, found at O.C.G.A. § 34-1-2, which 

makes it a criminal misdemeanor to discriminate against any person between the ages of 
40 and 70 years, solely upon the ground of age, when the reasonable demands of the 
position do not require such an age distinction. The individual must be qualified physically, 
mentally, and by training and experience to perform satisfactorily the labor assigned to him 
or her for which he or she applies; 



Responding to Discrimination Complaints 
Relating to Federal Grant Programs 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 4  of 
 

 

 

 
 

• Georgia’s Equal Employment for Persons with Disabilities Code of 1981, found O.C.G.A. 
§ 34-6A-1, et seq., which mimics the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, in that it prohibits discrimination because of an 
individual's disability with respect to wages, rates of pay, hours, or other terms and 
conditions of employment because of such person's disability unless such disability 
restricts that individual's ability to engage in the particular job or occupation for which he 
or she is eligible. The Code has no administrative prerequisites to filing suit; and 

 
• Atlanta Ordinance No. 2000-79, § 1, which applies to employers located within the City of 

Atlanta with ten or more employees. The Ordinance prohibits employment discrimination 
based on race, color, creed, religion, sex, domestic relationship status, parental status, 
familial status, sexual orientation, national origin, gender identity, age, or disability. 

 
Definitions 

 

Complaint Coordinator: A person or persons designated by GEMA/HS to ensure that received 
complaints are acted upon in a timely manner. 

 
Discrimination: The treatment or consideration of, or making a distinction in favor of or against, 
a person based on the person’s legally recognized protected category (including race, color, 
national origin, gender, age, sexual orientation, gender identity, religion, English proficiency, or 
disability) to which that person belongs rather on individual merit. There are various federal and 
state laws and rules that further describe the specific types of discrimination. 

 
Retaliation: The act of harassing, threatening, demoting, firing, or otherwise negatively targeting 
a complainant as a direct result of the complainant opposing unlawful discrimination. 

 
Subrecipient: A non-Federal entity that receives a grant sub-award from GEMA/HS to carry out 
part of a Federal program. A subrecipient does not include an individual that is a beneficiary of 
such a program. 

 
Complaint Procedures 

 

An employee, client, customer, program participant, or consumer of GEMA/HS or of a GEMA/HS 
subrecipient may submit a complaint of discrimination concerning the implementation or 
administration of any program, activity, or service receiving federal financial assistance from the 
DOJ or DHS on behalf of him/herself or on behalf of another. Any such individual has the right, 
and is encouraged, to file a written complaint with the Office for Civil Rights in the DOJ (OCR), 
the DHS’s Office for Civil Rights and Civil Liberties (CRCL), or GEMA/HS. 

 
1. If the relevant federal grant is funded by the DOJ, the complaint may be sent directly to the 

OCR using the Complaint Verification Form and Identity Release Statement, which are 
available at: https://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights/filing-civil-rights-complaint. 

https://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights/filing-civil-rights-complaint


Responding to Discrimination Complaints 
Relating to Federal Grant Programs 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 5  of 
 

 

 

 
 

The completed forms should be sent to: 
 

Office for Civil Rights 
Office of Justice Programs 
U.S. Department of Justice 
810 Seventh Street NW 
Washington, D.C. 20531 

 
2. If the relevant federal grant is funded by the DHS, the complaint may be sent directly to 

the DHS’s Office for CRCL. There are three submission methods available. One method 
for submitting the complaint is via email: CRCLCompliance@hq.dhs.gov. A second 
available method is fax: 202-401-4708. The complaint may also be sent via mail: 

 
U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Office for Civil Rights and Civil Liberties 
Compliance Branch 
245 Murray Lane, SW 
Building 410, Mail Stop #0190 
Washington, D.C. 20528 

 
3. For federal grants funded by either DOJ or DHS, the complaint may also be submitted 

directly to GEMA/HS. A complaint form can be downloaded from GEMA/HS’ website 
and submitted by email to: grants.complaint.coordinator@gema.ga.gov. 
The completed form may also be sent to: 

 
The Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 
Grants Complaint Coordinator 
935 United Avenue SE 
Atlanta, Georgia 30316 

 
Additional Agencies for Filing Discrimination Complaints 

 
In addition to the option for filing a discrimination complaint with GEMA/HS, the OCR, or the 
CRCL, discrimination complaints may be filed directly with a court, as well as the following state 
and federal administrative agencies, whose function is to enforce state and federal laws that 
prohibit discrimination: 

 
• Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) 

http://www.eeoc.gov/employees/charge.cfm 
 

• Georgia Commission on Equal Opportunity (GCEO) 
https://gceo.georgia.gov/ 

mailto:CRCLCompliance@hq.dhs.gov
mailto:grants.complaint.coordinator@gema.ga.gov
http://www.eeoc.gov/employees/charge.cfm
https://gceo.georgia.gov/


Responding to Discrimination Complaints 
Relating to Federal Grant Programs 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 6  of 
 

 

 

 

GEMA/HS Procedures for Processing Complaint 
 

1. A group of GEMA/HS employees will collectively act as the Complaint Coordinator for 
processing complaints of discrimination associated with this policy. 

 
2. If an employee, client, customer, program participant, or consumer of GEMA/HS or of a 

GEMA/HS subrecipient contacts a GEMA/HS employee and wishes to file a complaint 
against GEMA/HS or a GEMA/HS subrecipient concerning the implementation or 
administration of any program, activity, or service receiving federal financial assistance 
from the DOJ or DHS, the GEMA/HS employee shall instruct the complainant to file the 
complaint in writing, in accordance with the procedures above. 

 
3. Any GEMA/HS employee receiving such a complaint submitted directly to GEMA/HS, 

and any GEMA/HS employee wishing to submit such a complaint directly to GEMA/HS, 
shall route it to the Complaint Coordinator. If the complaint is against an employee of 
GEMA/HS, the complaint shall be forwarded to the Complaint Coordinator and that 
GEMA/HS employee should follow the procedures set out in HR-14, GEMA/HS’s 
Grievance Procedures Policy. 

 
4. For any complaint received by the Complaint Coordinator that is submitted directly to 

GEMA/HS, the Complaint Coordinator shall provide written acknowledgment of the 
complaint to the complainant. 

 
5. The Complaint Coordinator shall refer the complaint to the appropriate entity, which may 

include the Georgia Office of the Attorney General; the GCEO; the EEOC; the OCR; or 
the CRCL. If the Georgia Office of the Attorney General either is the agency about which 
the complaint is filed or has a conflict, the complaint shall be referred to the EEOC, OCR, 
or CRCL, as appropriate. 

 
6. Notwithstanding paragraph 5, for any complaint of discrimination concerning the 

implementation or administration of any program, activity, or service receiving federal 
financial assistance from the DOJ or DHS, GEMA/HS shall notify the OCR or CRCL, as 
appropriate, in writing of the following: 

 
a. Name of complainant 

 
b. Entity named in the complaint 

 
c. Description of the complaint of discrimination 

 
d. Steps being undertaken to investigate and resolve complaint 



Responding to Discrimination Complaints 
Relating to Federal Grant Programs 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 7  of 
 

 

 

 

In addition, GEMA/HS shall notify the complainant that they may file a complaint directly 
with the OCR or CRCL, as appropriate, at the following address or using one of the 
electronic submission methods described above: 

 

Office for Civil Rights 
Office of Justice Programs 
U.S. Department of Justice 
810 Seventh Street NW 
Washington, D.C. 20531 

U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Office for Civil Rights and Civil Liberties 
Compliance Branch 
245 Murray Lane, SW 
Building 410, Mail Stop #0190 
Washington, D.C. 20528 

 

Notification 
 

GEMA/HS will post this policy on the GEMA/HS website to notify all interested parties of the 
appropriate procedures for addressing complaints of discrimination concerning the implementation 
or administration of any program, activity, or service receiving federal financial assistance from 
the DOJ or DHS. 

 
Monitoring Subrecipients’ Response Procedures 

 
As part of a grant program review, GEMA/HS staff will review the subrecipient’s procedures for 
responding to discrimination complaints that employees, clients, customers, program participants, 
or consumers of the subrecipients have filed directly with the subrecipient. If the procedures do 
not exist, or are found to need improvement, the report to the subrecipient will note the findings. 
At a minimum, the subrecipient’s response should: 

 
a. Acknowledge complaint receipt to complainant in writing; 

 
b. Indicate which external agency the complaint is forwarded to for investigation; 

 
c. Comply with the appropriate timeframe by which to forward complaint; 

 
d. Notify GEMA/HS of complaint; and 

 
e. Notify complainant that a complaint of discrimination may be filed directly with the OCR, 

CRCL, EEOC, GCEO, or GEMA/HS, and where to locate those procedures. 
 

Training 
 

1. GEMA/HS will provide periodic training for all employees regarding the discrimination 
complaint procedures. 

 
2. GEMA/HS will facilitate civil rights requirements training for subrecipients. Such training 

may be arranged: 



Responding to Discrimination Complaints 
Relating to Federal Grant Programs 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 2022 

Page 8  of 
 

 

 

 

a. In conjunction with grant management training; 
 

b. Online through the GEMA/HS website; 
 

c. At the request of the subrecipient; or 
 

d. As a result of a grant program review. 



Page 1  of 
 

 

 

 
 

The purpose of this document is to help you file a discrimination complaint concerning the 
implementation or administration of any program, activity, or service receiving federal financial 
assistance from the U.S. Department of Justice or the U.S. Department of Homeland Security, 
whether within the Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 
(GEMA/HS) or a sub- recipient. This document is not intended to be used for complaints about 
employment with GEMA/HS. You are not required to use this document to file a complaint; a 
letter with the same information is sufficient. However, if you file a complaint by letter, you 
should include the same information that is requested herein. 

 
1. Information about the person who experienced the alleged discrimination: 

 
Name:   

First and Middle (Given Name) Last (Family Name/Surname) 

Phone #: Cell/Mobile:   Home:   Work:    

Mailing Address:     
P.O. Box or Street Address City State Zip Code 

 
Email (Optional):   

 
 

2. Information about the person(s) who is alleged to have discriminated: 

Name:   
First and Middle (Given Name) Last (Family Name/Surname) 

 
Phone #: Cell/Mobile:   Home:   Work:   

 

Mailing Address:   
P.O. Box or Street Address City State Zip Code 

 
 

3. Information about the agency or organization involved: 
 

Name:   
 

Phone #:   
 

Mailing Address:   
P.O. Box or Street Address City State Zip Code 

 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 

 
DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT FORM 



Page 2  of 
 

 

 

4. Are there other individuals or organizations involved in this discrimination 
complaint? 

 Yes 
 No 

 
If yes, please provide their name, telephone number, and address below: 

 
Name:   

 

Phone #:   
 

Mailing Address:   
P.O. Box or Street Address City State Zip Code 

 
5. Describe the nature of the alleged discrimination involved: 

 
 
 
 
 

6. Explain in detail what happened, when, and how the alleged discrimination 
occurred. State who was involved and how other persons were treated differently. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7. What other information do you think might be helpful to an investigation? 
 
 
 
 
 

8. Please list below any persons (witnesses, fellow employees, supervisors, or others) 
who have direct knowledge of the situation that might be able to provide 
information to support or clarify the complaint: 

 
Name:   

 

Phone #:   
 

Mailing Address:   
P.O. Box or Street Address City State Zip Code 



Page 3  of 
 

 

 

9. Have you or others filed a case or complaint regarding this allegation with any of 
the following? 

 Office for Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Justice 
 Office for Civil Rights and Civil Liberties, U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
 U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 
 Other Federal Agency 
 Federal or State Court 
 Georgia Department of Labor 
 Other:   

 

10. If any of the above were selected, please provide the following information: 

Name of Agency:     

Date Filed:    

Case or Docket #:      

Date of Trail/Hearing:    

Location of Agency/Court:   

Investigator:     

Status of Case:     
 

11. Information about the person filing this complaint, if the complaint is being 
submitted on behalf of another: 

 
Name:   

First and Middle (Given Name) Last (Family Name/Surname) 
 

Phone #: Cell/Mobile:   Home:   Work:   
 

Mailing Address:   
P.O. Box or Street Address City State Zip Code 

 
Email (Optional):   

 

Signature:   Date:   
 

You may submit the form by email to grants.complaint.coordinator@gema.ga.gov. 
 

Or send via U.S. Mail to the following address: 
Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 
Attention: Grants Complaint Coordinator 
P.O. Box 18055 
Atlanta, Georgia 30316 

mailto:grantscomplaintcoordinator@gema.ga.gov


HMGP 4400-0033 

RSA-4400 
Exhibit “H” 

-16 

 

 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT “H” 
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Certification 

In order to remain in compliance with The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act 
of 2006 (FFATA) reporting, complete Items 1-7 and Items 8-10 if necessary, and certify by an 
authorized agent. 

 

 
1. Sub-awardee DUNS Number   

 

2. Sub-awardee Name   
 

3. Sub-awardee DBA Name   
 

4. Sub-awardee Address   
 

5. If DBA, Sub-awardee Parent DUNS Number   
 

6. Sub-award Principle Place of Project Performance   
 

7. In the preceding fiscal year, did the sub-awardee receive 80% of its annual gross revenues from the 
Federal government? 

Yes   No   
If Yes, continue to question 8. If No, questionnaire is complete. 

 
8. In the preceding fiscal year, were the sub-awardee’s annual gross revenues from the Federal 

government more than $25 million annual? 
Yes   No   

If Yes, continue to question 9. If No, questionnaire is complete. 
 

9. Does the public have access to the names and total compensation of the sub-awardee’s five most highly 
compensated officers through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. §§ 78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986? 

Yes   No   
If Yes, continue to question 9. If No, questionnaire is complete. 

 
Sub-award Number: HMGP 4400-0033 

 
Federal Agency Name: Federal Emergency Management Agency 

 
CFDA Program Number and Program Title: 97.039 Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) 

 
Sub-award Project Description: LOWNDES COUNTY Fixed Generators 



HMGP 4400-0033 

RSA-4400 
Exhibit “H” 

-17 

 

 

 
 
 

10. Please list the names and compensation of the sub-awardee’s five most highly compensated officers. 
 
 

1.   $  
 

2.   $  
 

3.   $  
 

4.   $  
 

5.   $  
 
 

I certify that to the best of my knowledge all of the information on this form is complete and accurate. 
 
 

Authorized Signature:   Date:   
 
 
 

This section is for use by the Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 
Only. 

 
Sub-award Obligation/Agency Name:   

 
 
 

Signature  Date:    

Sub-award Obligation/Action Date:    

In accordance with The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA), this 
document has been processed in the FFATA Sub-award Reporting System (FSRS) by the 
undersigned: 



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: The Crescent Place of Historic Interest Tax Exemption  
  

 

  

DATE OF MEETING: February 11, 2025   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: - 0 - 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Proposed Resolution  
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: Staff has become aware of the attached 1975 local constitutional amendment 
and 1978 Board of Commissioners Resolution regarding the exemption from ad valorem taxation for places of 
historic interest meeting specified criteria and has also become aware of indicia that prior to December 1979 
the Board declared the property of the Garden Center, Inc. located at 904 North Patterson Street known as 
the Crescent exempt from ad valorem taxation as a place of historic interest. 
 
The attached proposed Resolution recites that the Board continues to be satisfied that the subject property 
and the Garden Center, Inc. meet the criteria specified in the attached 1978 Resolution and affirms that the 
subject property continues to be a place of historic interest exempt from ad valorem taxation. 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1. Adopt and authorize the Chairman to sign the attached proposed Resolution. 

2. Redirect 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Option 1 
  
DEPARTMENT: County Manager                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: Paige Dukes 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 











LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: Rules and Regulations for Claims for Refunds of Taxes  
  

 

  

DATE OF MEETING: February 11, 2025   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: - 0 - 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

  
(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Resolution  
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: In 2017, the Board adopted Rules and Regulations for the administration of 
claims for refunds of taxes and license fees. 
 
Attached is an update of those Rules and Regulations revised to better align with state statute. 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1. Approve Resolution 

2. Redirect 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Option 1 
  
DEPARTMENT: County Manager                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: Paige Dukes 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 



1 

 

A RESOLUTION  

ADOPTING RULES AND REGULATIONS  

GOVERNING ADMINISTRATION OF OCGA § 48-5-380 

WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-380(a) provides, in relevant part, each county and municipality shall 

refund to taxpayers any and all taxes and license fees which are determined to have been erroneously or 

illegally assessed and collected from the taxpayers under the laws of this state or under the resolutions or 

ordinances of the county; 

 

 WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-380(a) also provides, in relevant part, each county and municipality 

shall refund to taxpayers any and all taxes and license fees which are determined to have been voluntarily 

or involuntarily overpaid by the taxpayers; 

 

WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-380(b) provides, in relevant part, any taxpayer from whom a tax or 

license fee was collected who alleges that such tax or license fee was collected illegally or erroneously may 

file a claim for a refund with the governing authority of the county or municipality at any time within one 

year or, in the case of taxes, three years after the date of the payment of the tax or license fee to the county 

or municipality; 

 

WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-380(b) also provides, in relevant part, the claim for refund shall be in 

writing and shall be in the form and shall contain the information required by the appropriate governing 

authority; 

 

WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-380(b) also provides, in relevant part, the claim shall include a 

summary statement of the grounds upon which the taxpayer relies; 

 

WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-380(b) also provides, in relevant part, in the event the taxpayer desires 

a conference or hearing before the governing authority in connection with any claim for a refund, the 

taxpayer shall so specify in writing in the claim; 

WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-380(b) also provides, in relevant part, if the claim conforms to the 

requirements of OCGA § 48-5-380, the governing authority shall grant a conference at a time specified by 

the governing authority; 

 

WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-380(b) also provides, in relevant part, the governing authority shall 

consider information contained in the taxpayer’s claim for a refund and such other information as is 

available; 

 

WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-380(b) also provides, in relevant part, the governing authority shall 

approve or disapprove the taxpayers claim and shall notify the taxpayer of its action; 

 

WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-380(b) also provides, in relevant part, in the event any claim for refund 

is approved, the governing authority shall proceed under OCGA § 48-5-380(a) to give effect to the terms 

of OCGA § 48-5-380(a); 

 

WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-380(d) provides, in relevant part, any refunds approved or allowed 

under this OCGA § 48-5-380 shall be paid from funds of the county, the municipality, the county board of 

education, the state, or any other entity to which the taxes or license fees were originally paid; 

 

 WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-380(d) also provides, in relevant part, refunds shall be paid within 60 

days of the approval of the taxpayer’s claim; 



2 

 

 

WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-380(e) provides, in relevant part, the governing authority of any county, 

by resolution, shall adopt rules and regulations governing the administration of OCGA § 48-5-380; 

 

 WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-380(e) also provides, in relevant part, the governing authority of any 

county, by resolution, may delegate the administration of OCGA § 48-5-380 to an appropriate department 

in local government; 

 

WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-380(e) also provides, in relevant part, the governing authority of any 

county, by resolution, may delegate the approval or disapproval of claims where the reason for the claim is 

based on an obvious clerical error to an appropriate department in local government; 

 

WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-380(e) also provides, in relevant part, in disputed cases where there is 

no clerical error, the approval or disapproval of claims may not be delegated by the governing authority; 

 

WHEREAS, OCGA § 48-5-380(f) provides, in relevant part, nothing contained in OCGA § 48-5-

380(b) or (c) shall be deemed the exclusive remedy to seek a refund nor deprive taxpayers of the right to 

seek a refund by any other cause of action available at law or equity; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of 

Commissioners of Lowndes County that the following rules and regulations governing the administration 

of OCGA § 48-5-380 are adopted. 

Rules and Regulations Governing Administration of OCGA § 48-5-380 

1. Any taxpayer from whom a tax or license fee was collected who alleges that such tax or license 

fee was collected illegally or erroneously may file a claim for a refund with the Board of 

Commissioners at any time within one year or, in the case of taxes, three years after the date of 

the payment of the tax or license fee to Lowndes County.  

 

2. The claim for refund shall be in writing, shall identify the taxpayer, and shall include a 

summary statement of the grounds upon which the taxpayer relies. 

 

3. The Board of Commissioners delegates the administration of OCGA § 48-5-380 to the 

Lowndes County Board of Tax Assessors as provided herein. 

 

4. The Board of Commissioners also delegates to the Board of Tax Assessors the approval or 

disapproval of claims where the reason for the claim is based on an obvious clerical error. 

 

5. The Board of Commissioners shall refer all claims for refund filed with the Board of 

Commissioners to the Board of Tax Assessors. 

 

6. If the Board of Tax Assessors determines the claim is based on an obvious clerical error, the 

Board of Tax Assessors shall approve or disapprove the claim and shall report its decision 

approving or disapproving the claim to the Board of Commissioners. 

 

7. If the Board of Tax Assessors determines the claim is not based on an obvious clerical error, 

the Board of Tax Assessors shall prepare a written report to the Board of Commissioners stating 

facts relevant to the claim known to the Board of Tax Assessors and the Board of Tax 

Assessors’ analysis of the claim. 

 



3 

 

8. Upon request of the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners, the County Attorney shall 

provide to the Board of Commissioners his or her legal opinion or opinions regarding the claim. 

 

9. The Board of Commissioners shall consider information contained in the taxpayer’s claim for 

refund and such other information as is available. 

 

10. In the event the taxpayer desires a conference or hearing before the Board of Commissioners, 

the taxpayer shall so specify in writing in the claim. 

 

11. If the claim conforms to the requirements of OCGA § 48-5-380 and specifies the taxpayer 

desires a conference or hearing before the Board of Commissioners, the Board of 

Commissioners shall grant a conference. 

 

12. The place, date, and a time of such a conference shall be specified by the Board of 

Commissioners. 

 

13. At such a conference, the taxpayer and a representative of the taxpayer will be allowed a 

reasonable time, determined by the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners, to address the 

Board of Commissioners to explain the taxpayer’s claim. 

 

14. A representative or representatives of the Board of Tax Assessors shall also attend such a 

conference to answer any questions members of the Board of Commissioners may have 

regarding the Board of Tax Assessors’ report to the Board of Commissioners. 

 

15. To maintain proper decorum at such a conference, questions shall be limited to questions 

members of the Board of Commissioners may have of the taxpayer and/or the taxpayer’s 

representative, the representative of the Board of Tax Assessors attending the conference, 

and/or the County Attorney. All responses shall be directed to the Board of Commissioners. 

 

16. The Board of Commissioners shall approve or disapprove the taxpayer’s claim and notify the 

taxpayer of its action. 

 

17. In the event any claim for refund is approved, the Board of Commissioners shall proceed under 

OCGA § 48-5-380(a) to give effect to the terms of OCGA § 48-5-380(a). 

 

18. Any refunds approved or allowed under OCGA § 48-5-380 shall be paid from funds as 

provided in OCGA § 48-5-380(d). 

 

19. Any refunds shall be paid within 60 days of the approval of the taxpayer’s claim. 

 

This Resolution shall become effective when adopted and shall repeal and supersede all previous 

County ordinances and resolutions concerning this subject. 

This Resolution shall remain in full force and effect unless and until it is repealed or superseded by 

the Board of Commissioners. 

 

 

 

 

 



4 

 

IT IS SO RESOLVED, this 11th day of February 2025. 

 

   BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF LOWNDES COUNTY 

             

                   By: _______________________________________ 

                                                      Bill Slaughter, Chairman 

                                               

                                                                Attest: _____________________________________ 

                                                               Belinda C. Lovern, County Clerk  


	1. Call To Order
	2. Invocation
	3. Pledge Of Allegiance To The Flag
	4. Minutes For Approval
	a. Work Session - January 27, 2025 & Regular Session 

	5. Public Hearing
	a. REZ-2025-01 Hurtado Property, Bethany Dr., ~6.4ac, R-A to R-1, County Water & Septic
	Agenda Item Report
	REZ-2025-01 LOI
	REZ-2025-01 Survey
	REZ-2025-01Z
	REZ-2025-01F
	REZ-2025-01W
	Allen Opposition Letter

	b. REZ-2025-02 Hamilton Green Ph. 2, 4618 Bemiss Rd, 1.12ac, C-G to P-D, County Utilities
	Agenda Item Report
	REZ-2025-02 LOI
	62098 HAMILTON GREEN PHASE II SITE PLAN 12-19-2024
	REZ-2025-02Z
	REZ-2025-02F
	REZ-2025-02W

	c. REZ-2025-03 Thomas Linville, 4888 Break Thru Rd., ~16.3ac, R-1 to E-A, Well & Septic
	Agenda Item Report
	REZ-2025-03 LOI
	2024-12-31 Submitted Plat
	REZ-2025-03Z
	REZ-2025-03F
	REZ-2025-03W

	d. REZ-2025-04 River Run Farm, 6490 River Run, ~27ac., C-C to R-21, County Water & Septic
	Agenda Item Report
	Letter of Intent
	24011-Rezoning-C2.0-LAYOUT-REZONING(2)
	REZ-2025-04Z
	REZ-2025-04F
	REZ-2025-04W


	6. For Consideration
	a. Resolution Authorizing the Lowndes County Tax Commissioner to Receive Checks and Money Orders in Payment of Taxes and Licenses
	Agenda Item Report
	Resolution - Checks and Money Orders 01.24.2025

	b. A Resolution Electing Not to Require Mobile Home Decals
	Agenda Item Report
	Resolution - Mobile Home Decals 02.03.25

	c. Beer and Wine License - Manishkumar Patel of Kasum
	Agenda Item Report
	Busy Food Mart attachments February 2025

	d. New Endpoint Detection and Response (EDR) Software
	Agenda Item Report

	e. Whitewater Road Lift Station Pump
	Agenda Item Report
	Whitewater Replacemet Quote  2-3-2025
	Whitewater Repair Quote  11-12-2024

	f. Acceptance of Hazard Mitigation Grant for Generators
	Agenda Item Report
	4400-0033 Lowndes County - GEMA Signed Award letter BLANK RSA-LT

	g. The Crescent Place of Historic Interest Tax Exempt
	Agenda Item Report
	Referenced Attachments

	h. Rules and Regulations for Claims for Refunds of Taxes
	Agenda Item Report
	Resolution 02.07.2025


	7. Reports - County Manager
	8. Citizens Wishing To Be Heard - Please State Your Name and Address
	9. Adjournment

